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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Minda SAl Limited
Report on the Aundit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Minda SAT Limited ("the Company”),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2018, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow {or the vear then ended, and notes
to the financial statements, including a summary of the significamt accounting policies and other
explanatory information,

Management's Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs, prolit (including other comprehensive income), changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act.

This responsibitity also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding (he assets ol the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application ol appropriate accounting policies; making
Judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prodent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating elfectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant 1o the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability 1o
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters refated 1o going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unfess management either intends to liquidate the Company or o cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but 1o do so.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit,

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters
which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder,

We condueted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the andit 1o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS
financial statements are ree from material misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtam audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures
in the Ind AS financial statements. The procedures sclected depend on the auditor's judement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements. whether due Lo
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fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant 1o
the Company's preparation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made
by the Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind AS financial
statements,

We are also responsible to conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists relaied
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern.
I we conclude that & material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in the anditor’s report
to the related disctosures in the linancial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 10 modify the
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of the auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause an entity 10 cease 1o continue as a going concern.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 1o provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements,

Opinion

In our opinion and 1o the best of our information and according to the explanations given 1o us, the aforesaid
Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally aceepted in India of the state of
affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2018, its profit (including other comprehensive income), changes in
equity and its cash lows for the yvear ended on that date,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we enclose in the Annexure A, a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the said Ovder.
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As required by Scction 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

{a)  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and beliel were necessary for the purposes of our audii.

(by  Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears ftom our examination of those books.

{¢)  The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of
Changes in quity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d)  In our opinion, the aloresaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards preseribed under section 133 of the Act.

(e} On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2018 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2018 from
Being appeinted as a director interms of Section 164(2) of the Act,

(1 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference 1o linancial statements
ol the Company and the operating effectiveness ol such controls. refer 1o our separate Report in
"Annexure B

() With respect to the other matiers to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11

of the Companies {Audil and Auditers) Roles. 2014 in our opinion and o the best of our
information and according o the explanations given to us:
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1. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Ind
AS financial statements — Refer Note 2.38 10 the Ind AS financial statements,

ti. The Company did nol have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material Toresecable losses.

ini. There were no amounts which were required to be translerred to the nvestor Education and

Protection Fund by the Company

iv. The disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements regarding holdings as well as dealings in
specified bank notes during the period from 8" November 2016 to 30" December 2016 have
not been made since they do not pertain to the financial year ended 31 March 201 8. However
amounts as appearing in the audited financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2017
have been disclosed.

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 16124
Y

Y

: /

Shashank Agarwal
Place: Gurugram Partner
Date: 21 May 2018 Membership No.: 095109
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Annexuie A to the Independent Auditor’s Report

With reference (o the Annexure A referred to in our Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of the
Company on the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018, we report the following:

(1)

(1)

(ii)

(iv)

(v)

{vi}

(a)

{b)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

According to the information and explanations given 1o us, the Company has a regular
programme of physical verification of its fixed assets by which ali fixed assets (property. plant
and equipment) are verified, in a phased manner, over a period of three years. In our opinion,
this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company
and the nature of its asscts. As informed to us, the discrepancies noticed on such verification
were not material and have been properly adjusted in the books of account.

According o the mformation and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the title deeds of the immovable properties are held in the name
of the Company.

The inventories, except poods in transit and stocks lying with third parties, have been
physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion, the frequency of such
verification is reasonable. For stocks lying with third parties at the year end, written
confirmations have been obtained. According to the information and explanations given to us,
the discrepancies noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the book records
were not material and have been properly dealt with in the books of account,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies and other parties covered in the
register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Further, there are no Firms
or Linmited Liability Partnership covered in the register required under section 189 of the
Companies Act, 2013, Accordingly, paragraph 3 (iii} of the Order is not applicable.

According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis ol our examination of
records, we are of the opinion that the Company has complied with the provisions of section
185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans, investments and guarantees given
by the Company. There are no securitics provided by the Company as specified under section
85 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013,

As per the information and explanations given 1o us, the Company has not accepled any
deposits as mentioned in the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions
of section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules
framed there under. Accordingly. para 3(v) of the order is not applicable.

We have broadly reviewed the books ol account maintained by the Company (in respeet of
products covered) pursuant Lo the rules prescribed by the Central Government for maintenance
of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and are of the opinion that.
prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. However.
we have not made a detailed examination of the records.

N
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(vii) (a)

(b)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect
ol'undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees” State lnsurance, Income-
{ax, Sales tax, Goods and Service Tax (*GST"), Service tax, Duty of customs, Duty of excise,
Value added tax, Cess and other material statutory dues have generally been regularly
deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities though there has
been a slight delay in a few cases.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of Provident Fund, Emplovees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales tax, Goods and
Service Tax, Service tax, Duty of customs, Duty of excise. Value added tax, Cess and other
material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2018 for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payabie.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues in respect Income-
tax, Sales-tax, Goods and Service Tax Service tax, Duty of custom, Duty of excise and Value
added tax which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any
dispute except for the following:

{Amount in Rs.)

. Period to -
Name of which the Amount Forum where
the Nature of dues T Amouwnt® ou dispute is
" amount unpaid .
statute relates pending
show Cause-Cum= |14 ](;;i:::i?ﬂn}
Demand Notice. 28,895 28,895 D HRSIC )
Pithamput
Show Cauvse-Cum- | 20§3-14 ?iillsi;(:sioner
Demand Notice. 2014-15 127,791 127,791 ( )
Pithampur
Central Non payment of
Excise duty on PVC Cut | 2009-10 Tribunal
70,558 35,558
Act, cable scrap ’ T
1944 Non payment of
duty on PVC Cut | 2010-11 210,305 210,305 Tribunal
cable scrap
Payment of duty
on PVC cut cable Commissionerate
- 7 85¢ 9 856
scrap Under 2011-12 32,859 32,859 ~ Notda
Protest
2009-10 127,000 127,000
2010-11 | 115,645 115,645
Finance | Credit disallowed | 201112 114.0 22”4012 Division-V
Act, on Outward 2011-12 130,135 130,135 N"f‘r“’”‘ ?
1994 | Freight 201213134067 | 134067 |
2012-13 144,584 144,584
2013-14 277,767 277,767
2014-15 | 85932 183,932
Sales Form-38 Not with
Ce Bt ransfer to 20016-17 58,000 8.000 UPST - Noida
I'ax
MSL Murbad
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(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(x1)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

Period to

Name of . Forum where
] » . which the _ " Amount . .
the Nature of dues Amount* . dispute is
amount unpaid .
statute pending
relates
Pemand raised 20006-07 60,186 46,999

Tamil towards reversal 2007-08 581,130 441,245
Nadu of VAT Credit on 2008-09 5] 137'39 386,59() CTO

General | Capital Goods {Commercial tax
Sales Inputs. 2009-10 4073}_@ 307.959 | officer ) Range
Tax Acit, | Disallowance of officer, Kakkalur
1956 credit on Rejection | 2004-05 200,478 18,911

goods

Famount as per demand orders, including interest and penalty, wherever indicated in the said orders

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not defaulied in the repayment of dues to banks and financial institutions. Further, the
Company had no loans or borrowings from government at any time during the year and had
not issued any debentures during the vear or outstanding as at 31 March 2018

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year. The term loans were applied for the purposes for
which those were raised to the extent utilised during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company and no
fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the managerial remuneration has been paid or provided by the
Company in accordance with provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Companies
Act, 2013,

Aceording to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi
Company as prescribed under Section 406 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicabte.

According to the information and explanations given 1o us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, all the transactions with the related parties are in compliance
with the provisions section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the
details of such transactions have been disclosed in the Ind AS Financial Statements as required
by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanation given 1o us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable.

According o information and explanations given 1o us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered tnto any non-cash transactions with
directors or persons connected with them. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv} of the Order is not
applicable.
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{xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to be
registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly. paragraph
3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable.

ForBSR & Co, LLP
Chartered Accounfams
Firm’s registration no.: 101

&

Shashank Agarwal
Place: Gurugram Partner
Date: 21 May 2018 Membership No.: 095109

W-100022
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Ind AS financial statements of
Minda SAl Limited for the year ended 31 March 2018

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-scetion 3 of Seetion 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements of Minda SAI
Limited (“the Company™) as of 31 March 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial
statements of the Company {or the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Infernal Firancial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal contrel with reference 1o Ind AS financial stalements criteria established by the
Company considering the essentiai components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India ("1CAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and compieteness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of refiable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors® Responsibility

Our responsibility is fo express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, botl applicable to
an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit 1o oblain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with
reference 1o Ind AS financial statements was established and maintained and il such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy ol the interna
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements included obtaining an understanding, of
internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
an the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements. whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the andit evidence we have obtained s sufficient and appropriate 1o provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s inlernal inancial controls system with relerence 10 Ind AS financial
slatements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to Ind AS financial statements is a process designed
te provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Ind
AS financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepled accounting principles.
A company's internal financial conitrol with reference to Ind AS financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain (o the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and Tairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Ind AS financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the Ind AS financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due 1o error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of
the internal financial conirols with reference to Ind AS financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adeguate internal financial controls system
with reference to Ind AS financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS
financial statements were operating effectively as at 31 March 2018, based on the internal controt with
reference to Ind AS financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Qver
Financial Reporting, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 101248 W/W-100022

1

Shashank Agarwal
Place: Gurgaon Partner
Date: 21 May 2018 Membership No.: 095109
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MINDA SAI LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT

To The Members,

The Directors have great pleasure in presenting the 37" Annual Report on the business and operations
of the Company together with the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31,
2018

FINANCIAL RESULTS (AS PER APPLICABLE INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARD)

The financial Summary or highlights of the Company, for the year under review are as follows:

(Rs, in Millions)
PARTICULARS = - o o078 2016-1T
Sales/income from Operations 8722 7129
Other Income 72 244
Profit betore Interest, Depreciation & Other Expenses 1786 1536
Finance Cost 83 104
Depreciation and amoertization expense ' 180 148
Other expenses 890 718
Profit before taxes 633 566
Current tax (net) 201 160
Deferred iax charge/f {credit) 18 (10)
Profit for the period after taxes (A) 414 416
Other comprehensive income for the vyear (B) ' :
ltems that will not be reclassified to profit and loss
- Re-measurement of defined benefit liabilities (net of
tax) - (4)
Total other comprehensive income - (4)
Total comprehensive income for the period (A+B) 414 412

COMPANY PERFORMANCE

The Company has adopted IND-AS from April 01, 2017. The financial statements have been prepared
as per the IND-AS prescribed by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI).

During the year under review, your Company has achieved a turnover of Rs. 8722 Millions against Rs.
7129 Millions during previous year registering a growth of 22 % over the previous year. The Company
reported a total comprehensive income of Rs. 414 Millions as against Rs. 412 Millions, earned during
previous year, In the previous year, the Company had earned an extra ordinary income of Rs. 129
Millions towards sale of land & building. '

AUTOMOBILE INDUSTRY REVIEW vis a vis COMPANY'S PRODUCTS
As per data released by the Society of Indian Automobile Manufacturers (SIAM), the automobile

industry’s sales in India have witnessed at growth of 14.2% in FY18. The passenger vehicle segment
witnessed & 7.9% growth while the commercial vehicle segment posted a strong sales growth 19.9%



4)

5)

during the fiscal year. Growth for the 2-wheeler segment was pegged at 14.8%. The highest growth
was witnessed in the 3-wheeler segment, which grew by 24.2%.

Wiring Harness is going through an unprecedented transition phase. The functional criticality of the
vehicles now-a-days depends a lot on the physical connectivity between different components; sub-
systems in the vehicle and these connections are established through wiring harness. Wiring harness
contents, in terms of no. of circuits, connectors etc., have been increasing steadily and expected to
grow rapidly-in years ahead.

In spite of advancement in cutomation technology, the wiring harness manufacturing still remains
highly labor intensive job and likely to remain so in times to come. However, there is an increased focus
on improving the manufacturing systems and practices, both through product design initiatives like
modular design to process designs initiatives like creating more visual prompts for the operators to
enhance the productivity and meeting quality targets. It is imperative to make the product defect free
both from design point and manufacturing peint.

GROWTH DRIVERS FOR INDIAN AUTO-COMPONENT INDUSTRY

+ India has a fow-cost manufacturing base but a highly skilled manpower resource. This has
attracted foreign players for partnership and linkages.

o The transformation of the auto ancillary industry from a low-volume and highly fragmented
sector to a sector increasingly focused towards competitive strengths and improving
technology.

¢ Increased demand for R&D with higher allocation across companies.

o Frequent introduction of new models across various vehicle types.

CORPORATE DEVELOPMENTS

Acquisition of El Labs India Private Limited

The Company has acquired 100% stake in El Labs India Private Limited w.e.f. September 1, 2017. El
Labs India Private Limited is engaged in the business of designing, development, manufacturing and

distribution of telematics products and solutions for automotive and non-automotive applications

Credit Rating assigned by India Ratings & Research (Ind-Ra) and Crisil

Rating Agencies Instrument Ratings

India Ratings & Fund- based working capital IND A+/Stable/IND AT+

Research limits
Non- fund based working capital | IND A+/StablefiND A1+
limits
Term-loan IND A+/Stable

CRISIL Long-Term Rating : CRISIL A+/Stable (Upgraded

from CRISIL A/Stable)

Short-Term Rating CRISILA |

DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors has recommended a dividend of Rs. 18 per equity share (Face Value Rs. 100
per equity share) for the financial year 2017-18 in their meeting held on May 21, 2018 subject to the

2




6)

7)

8}

9

approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming 37th Annual General Meeting of the Company.
The dividend on Equity Shares if declared at the meeting will be credited to those members whose

name shall appear on the Company’s Register of Members on Wednesday, July 25, 2018; in respect of
the shares held.

SHARE CAPITAL

The Paid-up Equity Share Capital as on 31st March, 2018 was 70,77,108 Equity Share @ Rs. 100 face
value. During the year under review, the Company has not issued any shares.

FIXED DEPOSITS

The Company has neither invited nor accepted any deposits from the public falling within the preview
of section 73 of the Act read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rule 2014 during the year.
There is no unclaimed or unpaid deposit lying with the Company.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES, JOINT VENTURES OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Your Company is having é subsidiaries namely,

Almighty International Pte. Lid., Singapore (100%)

Minda Stoneridge Instruments Limited, India (51%)

El Labs India Private Limited {100%)

PT Minda Automotive Indonesia, indonesia {100% step subsidiary)

PT Minda Automotive Trading, Indonesia (100% step subsidiary)

Minda Vietnam Automotive Company Limited, Vietnam (100% step subsidiary)

"0 op U0

A statement in the prescribed Form AOC-1, pursuant to Section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013 relating
to subsidiaries, Joint Ventures or Associate Companies for the year ended on March 31, 208 has been
attached to the Financial Statements. The Financial Statements of the subsidiaries shall be made
available to the shareholders seeking such information and shall also be available for inspection at its
Registered Office.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

During the year under review, Ms. Jyotika Kalra has resigned from the Board w.e.f. April 11, 2017 due to
her appointment as a member of National Human Rights Commission by President of India. The Board
of Directors took note of the same and appreciates the contribution made by her. Your Company is in
the process of appointment of a new Woman Director in place of Ms. Jyotika Kalra. Further the Board
of Directors in its meeting held on May 23, 2017 has appointed Mr. Pardeep Mann as a Company
Secretary and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the Company w.e.f May 01, 2017.

In accordance with the requirement of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Praveen Gupta (DIN:01885287),
Director retiring by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself
for re-appointment. The Board Members recommends his re-appointment. All Independent Directors
have given declarations under Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013, that they meet the criteria of
independence as laid down under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.



Board Evaluation

Pursuant to the corporate governance requirements as prescribed in the Companies Act, 2013, the
Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, Board Committees and
of individual directors.

In a meeting, the performance of all the directors including Independent Directors , performance of the
Board as a whole, performance of the Committee(s) of the Board and performance of the chairman
was evalugted, taking into account the views of other directors. Performance evaluation of
independent directors was done by the entire board, excluding the independent director being
evaluated.

Remuneration Policy

Pursuant to the provisions of section 134(3)(e) and Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 Act, the
policy of the Company on Directors’ appointment and remuneration, including the criteria for
determining qualification, positive attributes, independence of directors and other matters are

attached at Annexure-l.

Details of Board Meetings and attendance of Directors:-

S.No Date of Attendance of | Attendance of | Attendance | Attendance of | Attendance of
Board Mr. Ashok Mr. Sanjeev of Mr. Avinash | Mr. Praveen
Meeting Minda Saxena Mr, Ramesh Parkash Gupta
Chandra Gandhi
Jain
1 23/05/2017 Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
2 29/08/2017 Yes Yes Yes Yes No
3 09/09/2017 Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
4 07/11/2017 Leave of Yes Yes Yes Yes
Absence
5 02/62/2018 Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
(Through
Video
Conferencing)

The intervening gap between the Meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act,

2013,

Details of Audit Committee Meetings and attendance of Members:-

S.No Date of Audit Attendance of M. Attendance of Attendance of  Mr.
Committee Avinash Parkash Mr. Ashok Minda  |Ramesh Chandra Jain
Meeting Gandhi
1 23/05/2017 Yes Yes Yes
2 15/Q7/2017 Yes No Yes
3 *09/09/2017 Yes Yes Yes




S.No Date of Audit Attendance of Mr. Attendance of Attendance of Mr.
Committee Avinash Parkash Mr. Ashok Minda Ramesh Chandra Jain
Meeting Gandhi
4 07/11/2017 Yes No Yes
5 22012/2017 Yes Yes Yes
6 02/02/2018 Yes Yes Yes

The intervening gap between the Meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act,

2013,

Details of Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) Meetings and attendance of Members:-

S.No Date of NRC Attendance of ivir. Attendance of Attendance of
Meeting Avinash Parkash Mr. Ashok Minda Mr. Ramesh Chandra
Gandhi Jain
1 23.05.2017 Yes Yes Yes

Details of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSR) Meetings and attendance of Members:-

S.No Date of CSR Attendance of Attendance of Attendance of
Meeting Mr. Avinash Parkash Mr. Sanjeev Mr. Ramesh Chandra
Gandhi Saxenda Jain
1 22/12/2017 Yes Yes Yes

Details of Share Transfer Committee (STC) Meetings and attendance of Members:-

SNo | Date of STC Attendance of Mr.| Attendance of  Mr. Attendance of
Mesting Ashok Minda Avinash Parkash Mr. Sanjeev Saxend
Gandhi
1 0%/09/2017 Yes Yes Yes

Committees to the Board

The Board currently has 4 (four) Committees:

1) Audit Committee: During the year under review, the Audit Committee of the Company comprised of
Mr. Avinash Parkash Gandhi as Chairman of the Committee, Mr. Ramesh Chandra Jain and Mr.
Ashok Minda as the members of the Committee.

Board of Directors in its meeting held on February 02, 2018 has re-constituted the Audit Committee,
which comprises of Mr. Avinash Parkash Gandhi — Chairman, Mr. Ramesh Chandra Jain - Member,
Mr. Praveen Gupta - Member.

2) Nomination and Remuneration Committee: During the year under review, the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee of the Company comprised of Mr. Avinash Parkash Gandhi as Chairman
of the Committee, Mr. Ashok Minda and Mr. Ramesh Chandra Jain as members of the Committee.

3) Share Transfer Committee: During the year under review, the Committee comprised of Mr. Ashok
Minda as Chairman of the Committee, Mr. Avinash Parkash Gandhi and Mr. Sanjeev Saxena as

members of the Committee.
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11)

4) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee: During the year under review, the Committee comprised
of Mr. Avinash Parkash Gandhi as Chairman of the Committee, Mr. Ramesh Chandra Jain and
Mr. Sanjeev Saxena as members of the Committee.

STATUTORY STATEMENTS

DIRECTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, with respect to Directors
Responsibility Statement, your Directors confirm:
a} That in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been

followed and no material departure was made for the same. Further, the Company has
adopted Ind AS with effect from Aprit 01, 2017, pursuant ‘to notification issued by Ministry of
Corporate Affairs dated February 16, 2015, notifying the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standard) Rules, 2015. Accordingly, the financial statements of the Company for the financial
year ended March 31, 2018, have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS as prescribed
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 {the “Act”), read with the relevant rules made
thereunder and cther accounting principles generally accepted in Indig;

b) That Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the
Company for the period ended on March 31, 2018;

¢} That Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) That the annual financiat statements have been prepared on a going concern basis;

e) That proper internal financial controls were in place and that the financial controls were
adequate and were operating effectively;

f) That proper system had been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
During the year, such controls were tested and no reportable material weakness in the design or

operation was observed.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND
OQUTGO

The information on conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and
outge stipulated under Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of The
Companies’(Accounts) Rules, 2014, is annexed herewith as Annexure-ll to this Report.
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13)

14}

15)

16)

17}

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

In terms of the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, a statement showing the
names and other particulars of the employees drawing remuneration in excess of the limits set out in
the said Rules are provided in the Annexure-lil to this report.

NATURF OF BUSINESS

There has been no change in the nature of business of your Company during the year under review.

RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on an arm's length
basis and werfe in the ordinary course of business. There were no materially significant related party
transactions made by the Company with Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or other
designated persons which may have a potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large. All
related party transactions, wherever applicable, are placed before the Audit Committee.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS GIVEN, INVESTMENTS MADE, GUARANTEES GIVEN AND SECURITIES
PROVIDED

Particulars of-loans given, investments made, guarantees given and securities provided along with the
purpose for which the loan or investments or guarantee or security is proposed to be utilized by the

recipient are provided in the financial statement (Please refer to Note 2.11, 2.12, to the financial
statements). '

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

During the year under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the applicable
Secretarial Standards issued by Institute of Companies Secretaries of India. The Company has devised
proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable Secretarial Standards issued
by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and such systems are adequate and operating
effectively.

EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTIONS

The members of the Holding Company Minda Corporation Limited (MCL) had approved ‘Employee
Stock Option Scheme, 2017’ through Postal Ballot on 10 February 2017. The plan envisaged grant of
stock options to eligible employees of MCL and its subsidiaries at reserve price equal to the latest
available closing price discounted by 50% or such other percentage as may be decided by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the MCL.



Under the Plan, upto 53,41,840 stock options can be issued to eligible employees of the MCL and its
subsidiaries, ‘whether working in India or out of India, including any Director of the MCL and its
subsidiaries, whether whole time or otherwise excluding the independent Directors. Options are to be
granted at price equal to the latest available closing price discounted by 50% or such other percentage
as may be decided by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the MCL. Under the Plan, each
option, upon vesting, shall entitle the holder to acquire one equity share of Rs. 2 each. The options
granted will vest gradually over a pericd not earlier than one year and not later than five years from
the date of grant of such Options. Vesting of Options is a function of achievement of performance
criteria or any other criteria, as specified by the Committee of MCL and communicated in the grant
letter.

Summary of vesting and lock-in provisions are given below:

Vesting Schedule
;r' % of options scheduled | Vesting date Lock-in period
0- to vest
: 20% 01-Apr-18 Nil
2 20% 01-Apr-19 Nil
3 20% 01-Apr-20 Nil
4 40% 01-Apr-21 Nil

The movement in the stock options under the Plan, during the year, is set out below:

Particulars For the year ended on |For ~the vyear ended on
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Number of | Weighted Number  of | Weighted
Options Average Options Average
Exercise  Price Exercise Price
{Rs.) {Rs.)
Qutstanding at the 4,10,000 50 - -
beginning of the year )
Granted during the year - - 4,10,000 50

Forfeit during the year - w - -

Qutstanding at the end of 4,10,000 50 4,10,000 50
the year

Exercisable at the end of - - — -
the year

Stock compensation expense in relation to stock options granted to employees of the company is
Rs. 4 Millior.
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20)

Stock compensation expense under the Fair Value Method has been determined based on fair value of
the stock options. The fair value of stock options was determined using the Black Scholes option pricing
model with the following assumptions: )

. For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2017
Expected volatility 47.58%

Risk free interest rate 7.15%
Exercise price (Rs.) 50
Expected dividend yield 0.54%
Life of options (years) ' 4.07
Weighted average fair value of options as at the grant

92.90
date (Rs.)

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Your Company has the policy of giving back to the society and has carried a host of CSR activities this
year. In line with the requirement of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 your company having a
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee. The details of Committee and the term of reference are
provided in corporate governance report. The CSR Policy of the Company is available on its website at
the link:

https://minda.co.in/msl/wp-content/uploads/sites/7/2018/07/Policy-on-Corporate-Social-
Responsibility.pdf

‘Spark Minda Foundation’ a non-profit company registered under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013
is the implementing agency for implementation of CSR activities.

The Company would also undertake other need based initiatives in compliance with Schedule Vil to the
Act. The details of CSR activities are annexed herewith at Annexure-1V to this report.

VIGIL MECHANISM/ WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

Your Company is committed to the highest standards of ethical,” moral and legal business conduct.
Accordingly, Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy was formulated which provides a robust framework
for dealing with genuine concerns & grievances. The Policy provides for adequate safeguard against
victimization of employees who avail the mechanism and also provides direct access to the
Chairperson of the Audit Committee. Specifically, employees can raise concerns regarding any
discrimination, harassment, victimization, any other unfair practice being adopted against them or any
instances of fraud by or against your Company. The same has also been displayed on the website of
the Company and the link for the same is:
https:ffminda.co.in/msliwp-content/uploads/sites/7/2018/07/Whistle-Blower-Policy.pdf

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

The details forming part of the extract of the Annual Return in form MGT 9 is annexed herewith as
Annexure-V.
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STATUTORY AUDITORS AND REPORT

At the Annual General Meeting held on September 16, 2016, B S R & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants,
(ICAl Firm Registration No. 101248W/W-100022) were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company
to hold office till the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting to be held in the calendar year 2021.
The appointment of B S R & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, as statutory auditors of the Company, is
placed for ratification alongwith approval of remuneration at the ensuving AGM.

All observations made in the Audit Report on the Financial Statements are self-explanatory and do not
call for any further comments under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013.

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS AND REPORT

Sanjay Grover & Associates, Company Secretaries (Firm Registration No- P2001DE052900) were
appointed to conduct the secretarial audit of the Company for the financial year 2017-18, as required
under Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules thereunder. The secretarial audit report for
financial year 2017-18 forms part of the Annual Report as Annexure VI to this Directors' Report.

COST AUDITOR

The Board of Directors has appointed Chandra Wadhwa & Co., Cost Accountants as a Cost Auditors
(Firm Registration No. 00239) for conducting the audit of cost records of the Company for the
financial year 2017-18 pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013.

HUMAN RESOURCES DEVELOPMENT AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS
Minda SAl firmly reiterates its trust that our employees are the key assets of the organization.

Our talent sourcing strategies include employee referrals, direct applications through the career section
of our website, campus placements and channel partners.

Protection of. employees from injury or occupational disease is a major continuing objective. We
continue to enhance safety & security at the workplace by prescribing policies & procedures, creating
awareness and imparting trainings. In addition to the above, we have mechanismin place to foster a
positive workforce environment, free from harassment of any nature.

Human Resource Department continuously focuses on employee engagement and motivation which
further helps in achieving strategic objective of the organization. We continuously strive to provide our
employees with competitive compensation packages.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

Your Company has a risk management policy in place which is reviewed by the Senior Management
on periodic basis. The Company is taking various actions to mitigate/ lower the business risks which are
unaddressed.
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AWARDS

During the year under review, your Company received many awards and felicitations conferred by
reputable organizations for achievements in different areas:-

1. The Gold Award in "ICQCC - award 2017" Organized by QPAP( quality and Productivity Association
_ of Philippines

2. The Platinum Award at "Second Southern Regional level QIT (Quality Improvement Team)
Competition” organized by ABK-AOTS DOSOKAI (Japan)

3. The Silver Award for “Best in Class Performance” in Business Alignment from Ashok Leyland in the
Supplier Summit — 2017

. Istplace "Platinum Award” in AOTS - Dasokai National Convention

5. Awarded ” Best Vendor Company” for 2016-17 by Maruti Suzuki
"Employee engagement Leadership Award” at Employee enéagement summit 2018 organized by
Quench Global Technologies Pvt. Ltd.

7. The "Special Contribution Award - Kaizen Innovative Category” in Cll - 30th Kaizen Conference &
Competition

8. The "ClH 55 Sustenance Award {2017)". It ranked 1st in (Manufacturing) & 2nd in {Overall Industry
ségments).

POLICY ON PREVENTION & PROHIBITION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE

As per the requirement of The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition &
Redressal) Act, 2013 (‘Act’} and Rules made thereunder, your Company has constituted Internal
Complaint Committees {ICC). The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace.
While maintaining the highest governance norms, the Company has also appointed external
independent persons, who have requisite experience in handling such matters. During the year, the
Coempany has not received any complaint of sexval harassment.

GENERAL

Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items as there
were no transactions on these items during the year under review:
a) Details relating to deposits covered under Chapter V of the Act.

b) lssue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise.

¢) lssue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company under any
scheme save and except ESOP referred to in this Report.

d} Mr. Sanjeev Saxena, Managing Director of the Company is also the Managing Director of
Minda Stoneridge Instruments Limited which is a subsidiary of the Company. He did not receive
any remuneration from any of its subsidiaries.

e) No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which
impact the going concern status and Company’s operations in future.

k3
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APPRECIATIONS AND ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

The Board of Directors would like to express their sincere thanks to the Shareholders & Investors of the
Company for the trust reposed on us over the past several years. The Directors also take this
opportunity to thank all Shareholders, Clients, Vendors, Banks, Government and Regulatory Authorities
and Stock Exchanges, for their continued support. The Directors place on record their sincere
appreciation to all employees of the Company for their unstinted commitment and continved
contribution to the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of
MINDA SAI LIMITE

L B

T
Place: Gurgaon Sanj &VS‘&}&GWQ/ Ashok Minda
Date: 21.05.2018 CEO & Mahaging Director Director
\ DIN: 07252911 DIN: 00054727
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ANNEXURE-I TQ DIRECTORS' REPORT

REMUNERATE_ON POLICY FOR DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND QTHER EMPLOYEES

The Remuneration Policy of Minda SAl Limited (the "Company”) is designed to attract, motivate,
improve productivity and retain manpower, by creating a congenial work environment, encouraging
initiatives, personal growth and team work, and inculcating a sense of belonging and involvement,
besides offering appropriate remuneration packages and superannuation benefits. The policy reflects
the Company's objectives for good corporate governance as well as sustained long term value
creation for shareholders.

This Remuneration Policy applies to directors, senior management including its Key Managerial
Personnel (KMP) and other employees of the Company.

1.

1.1.

1.2.

1.3,

1.4.

1.5.

1.6.

1.7.

2.1.

2.2.

2.3,
2.4,

OBJECTIVE
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and this Policy shall be in compliance with
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read along with the applicable rules thereto. The Key

Objectives of the Committee would be:

To guide the Board in relation to appointment and removal of Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and Senior Management.

To evaluate the performance of the members of the Board and provide necessary report to the
Board for further evaluation of the Beard.

To recommend to the Board on Remuneration payable to the Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and Senior Management.

To provide to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management reward linked directly to
their effort, performance, dedication and achievement relating to the Company’s operations.

To retain, motivate and promote talent and io ensure long term sustainability of talented
managerial persons and create competitive advantage.

To devise a policy on Board diversity

To develop a succession plan for the Board and to regularly review the plan;

DEFINITIONS

Act means the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed there under, as amended from time to
time.

Board means Board of Directors of the Company.

Directors mean Directors of the Company.

Key Managerial Personnel means

i3



2.4.1.

24.2.

2.4.3,

2.4.4,

2.4.5,

2.5,

3.1.

3.1.1.

3.1.2.

3.1.3.

3.2,

3.2.1.

b)

Chief Executive Officer or the Managing Director or the Manager;
Whole-time director;

Chief Financial Officer;

Company Secretary; and

such other officer as may be prescribed.

Senior Management means Senior Management personnel of the Company who are members
of its core management team excluding the Board of Directors including Functional Heads.

ROLE OF COMMITTEE

Matters to be dealt with, perused and recommended to the Board by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee

The Committee shall:

Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a
director,

|[dentify persons who are qualified to become Director and persons who may be appointed in
Key Managerial and Senior Management positions in accordance with the criteria laid down in
this policy.

Recommend to the Board, appointment and removal of Director, KMP and Senior Management
Personnel.

Policy for appointment and removal of Director, KMP and Senior Management

Appointment criteria and qualifications

The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and experience
of the person for appointment as Director, KMP or at Senior Management level and
recommend to the Board his / her appointment.

A person should possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience for the position he
fshe is considered for appointment. The Committee has discretion to decide whether
qualification, expertise and experience possessed by a person is sufficient / satisfactory for the

concerned position.

The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as Whole-time
Director who has attained the age of seventy years.

14



3.2.2.

b)

Yf

3.2.3.

3.2.4.

3.2.5,

Term [ Tenure
Managing Director/Whole-time Director:

The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its Executive Chairman, Managing
Director or Executive Director for a term not exceeding five years at a time. No re-appointment
shall be made earlier than one year before the expiry of term.

Independent Director:

An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive years on the Board of
the Company and will be eligible for re-appointment on passing of a special resolution by the
Company and disclosure of such appointment in the Board's report.

No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms, but such
Independent Director shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of three years of ceasing to
become an Independent Director. Provided that an Independent Director shall not, during the
said period of three years, be appointed in or be associated with the Company in any other
capacity, either directly or indirectly.

At the time of appointment of Independent Director it should be ensured that number of Boards
on which such Independent Director serves is restricted to seven listed companies as an
Independent Director and three listed companies as an Independent Director in case such
person is serving as a Whole-time Director of a listed company or such other number as may be
prescribed under the Act.

Evaluation

The Committee shall carry out evaluation of performctnce' of every Director, KMP and Senior
Management Personnel at regular interval (yearly).

Removal

Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Act or under any other applicable Act,
rules und regulations thereunder, the Committee may recommend, to the Board with reasons
recorded in writing, removal of a Director, KMP or Senior Management Personnel subject to the
provisions and compliance of the said Act, rules and regulations.

Retirement

The Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall retire as per the applicable
provisions of the Act and the prevailing policy of the Company. The Board will have the
discretion to retain the Director, KMP, Senior Management Personnel in the same position/

remuneration or otherwise even after attaining the retirement age, for the benefit of the
Company.
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3.3.

3.3.1.

b)

c)

d)

3.3.2.

b)

Policy relating to the Remuneration for the Whole-time Director, KMP and Senior Management
Personnel

General:

The remuneration / compensation / commission etc. to the Whole-time Director, KMP and Senior
Management Personnel will be determined by the Committee and recommended to the Board
for approval. The remuneration / compensation / commission etc. shall be subject to the prior/
post approval of the shareholders of the Company and Central Government, wherever
required.

The remuneration and commission to be paid to the Whole-time Director shall be in accordance
with the percentage / slabs / conditions laid down in the Articles of Association of the Company
and as per the provisions of the Act.

Increments to the existing remuneration/ compensation structure may be recommended by the
Committee to the Board which should be within the slabs approved by the Sharehoiders in the
case of Whole-time Director.

Where any insurance is taken by the Company on behalf of its Whole-time Director, Chief
Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, the Company Secretary and any cother employees for
indemnifying them against any liability, the premium paid on such insurance shall not be
treated as part of the remuneration payable to any such personnel. Provided that if such person
is proved to be guilty, the premium paid on such insurance shall be treated as part of the
remuneration.

Remuneration to Whole-time / Executive / Managing Director, KMP and Senior Management
Personnel:

Fixed pay:

The Whole-time Director/ KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall be eligible for a monthly
remuneration as may be approved by the Board on the recommendation of the Committee. The
breakup of the pay scale and quantum of perguisites including, employer’s contribution to P.F,
pension scheme, medical expenses, club fees etc. shall be decided and approved by the
Board/ the Person authorized by the Board on the recommendation of the Committee and
approved by the shareholders and Central Government, wherever required.

Minimum Remuneration:

If, in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company
shall pay remuneration to its Whole-time Director in accordance with the provisions of Schedule
V other applicable provisions.

Provisions for excess remuneration:

If any Whole-time Director draws or receives, directly or indirectly by way of remuneration any
such sums in excess of the limits prescribed under the Act or without the prior sanction of the
Central Government, where required, he / she shall refund such sums to the Company

and until such sum is refunded, hold it in trust for the Company. The Company shall not waive
recovery of such sum refundable to it unless permitted by the Central Government.
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3.3.35.

b)

4.1

4.2
4.3

4.4

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

7.1

7.2

Remuneration to Non- Executive / Independent Director:

Sitting Fees:

The Non- Executive / Independent Director may receive remuneration by way of fees for
attending meetings of Board or Committee thereof. Provided that the amount of such fees shall
be within the overall limit as prescribed by the Central Government from time to time.

Stock Options:

An Independent Director shall not be entitled to any stock option of the Company.

MEMBERSHIP

The NR Committee shall consist of a minimum 3 non-executive directors, majority of them being
independent.

Minimum two (2) members shall constitute a quorum for the Committee meeting.
Membership of the Committee shall be disclosed in the Annual Report.

Term of the Committee shall be continued unless terminated by the Board of Directors.
CHAIRPERSON

Chairperson of the Committee shall be an Independent Director.

Chairperson of the Company may be appointed as a member of the Committee but shall not
be a Chairman of the Committee.

In the absence of the Chairperson, the members of the Committee present at the meeting shall
choose one amongst them to act as Chairperson,

Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee meeting could be present at the
Annual General Meeting or may nominate some other member to answer the shareholders’
queries.

FREQUENCY OF MEETINGS

The meeting of the Committee shall be held at such regular intervals as may be required.

COMMITTEE MEMBERS' INTERESTS

A member of the Committee is not entitled to be present when his or her own remuneration is
discussed at a meeting or when his or her performance is being evaluated.

The Committee may invite such executives, as it considers dppropriate, to be present at the
meetings of the Committee.

z
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2.1

9.2

10.

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9
10.10
10.11

SECRETARY

The Company Secretary of the Company shall act as Secretary of the Committee.

VOTING

Matters arising for determination at Commitiee meetings shall be decided by a majority of
votes of Members present and voting and any such decision shall for all purposes be deemed
a decision of the Committee.

In the case of equality of votes, the Chairman of the meeting will have a casting vote.
NOMINATION DUTIES

The duties of the Committee in relation to nomination matters include:

Ensuring that there is an appropriate induction in place for new Directors and members of
Senior Management and reviewing its effectiveness;

Ensuring that on appointment to the Board, Non-Executive Directors receive a formal letter of
appointment in accordance with the Guidelines provided under the Act;

Identifying and recommending Directors who are to be put forward for retirement by rotation.
Determining the appropriate size, diversity and composition of the Board;

Setting a formal and transparent procedure for selecting new Directors for appointment to the
Board;

Developing a successicn plan for the Board and Senior Management and regularly reviewing
the plan;

Evaluating the performance of the Board Members and Senior Management in the context of
the Company’s performance from business and compliance perspective;

Making recommendations to the Board concerning any matters relating to the continuation in
office of any Director at any time including the suspension or termination of service of an
Executive Director as an employee of the Company subject to the provision of the iaw and their
service contract.

Delegating any of its powers to one or more of its members or the Secretary of the Committee;
Recommend any necessary changes to the Board; and

Considering any other matters, as may be requested by the Board.
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11. REMUNERATION DUTIES
The duties of the Committee in relation to remuneration matters include:

11.1  to consider and determine the Remuneration Policy, based on the performance and also
bearing in mind that the remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract retain and
motivate members of the Board and such other factors as the Committee shall deem
appropriate all elements of the remuneration of the members of the Board.

11.2  to approve the remuneration of the Senior Management including key managerial personnel of
the Company maintaining a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long
term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company.

11.3  todelegate any of its powers to one or more of its members or the Secretary of the Committee.

11.4  to consider any other matters as may be requested by the Board.

11.5 Profes:sioncxi indemnity and liability insurance for Directors and senior management.

12. MINUTES OF COMMITTEE MEETING
Proceedings of all meetings must be minuted and signed by the Chairman of the Committee at

the subsequent meeting. Minutes of the Committee meetings will be tabled at the subsequent
Board and Committee meeting.

ANNEXURE TO THE REMUNERATION POLICY
BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

1. BACKGROUND AND OBJIECTIVE

The Board of Directors of Minda SAl Limited (“the Company”) decided to consider and formulate a
policy on diversity of the composition of the Board by the name of Board Diversity Policy (‘the Policy’).
The Policy sets out the approach to have diversity on the Boards of Directors (“Board”) of the Company
in terms of thought, experience, knowledge, perspective and gender in the Board.

The Diversity in the Board is increasingly recognized by the government, stock exchanges, companies,
shareholders and other stakeholders as an essential component of good corporate governance that
ultimately leads to better business success and sustainability.

Board Diversity offer number of benefits:

e Improving board effectiveness and decision-making by tapping into a broader range of perspectives;
¢ Managing and mitigating environmental, social and corporate governance risks;

¢ Being more relevant by reflecting the diversity of a company's workforce and stakeholders;

e Signaling a more progressive company.
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Diversity is not simply about having a collection of individuals who have different characteristics. It is
about getting the right people for the job and harnessing their unique and individual skills and
experiences in a way that collectively benefits the organisation and the business.

2. DIVERSITY ON BOARD — POLICY STATEMENT

The term diversity typically refer to ‘visible’ indicators such as gender, age, and culture - including

nationality, race or ethnic background. It may also include the individual skills, exposure and
experience.

The basic essence of policy of diversity is to provide a framework that should enable qualified people
to be seen as potential directors when they might have otherwise been overlooked. They also
encourage boards to recognize that ‘differences’ can be leverc:ged as assets. The ultimate objective is
to have a board that offers a broad range of perspectives that are directly relevant to the business and
organizational needs, .

Considering the above, following parameters has been identified for having a diversify board of the
Company:

A. Value Statements by NR Commiittee

* We believe diversity is important to board effectiveness because it will encourage a diversity
of perspectives which we believe will fuel creativity and innovation.

* We commit that appointments to the Board will be based on merit as well as complementing
and expanding the skills, knowledge and experience of the Board as a whole.

* We recognize and embrace the benefits of having o diverse Board, and see increasing
diversity at Board level as an essential element in maintaining a competitive advantage.

» A truly diverse Board will include and make good use of differences in the skills, regional and
industry experience, background, race, gender and other qualities of Directors. These
differences will be considered in determining the optimum composition of the Board and when
possible should be balanced appropriately. All Board appointments are made on merit, in the
context of the skills and experience the Board as a whole requires to be effective.
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B. Nominations and Appointments

The Nominations and Remuneration Committee is responsible for:

» Assessing the appropriate mix of skills, experience, expertise and diversity required on the
Board based on current and projected future activities of the company, and the extent to which
the required skills, experience, expertise and diversity are represented on the Board;

» Overseeing Board succession to maintain an appropriate mix of skills, experience, expertise
and diversity on the Board and shall also perform monitoring, reviewing and reporting io the
Board on Beard diversity

« Managing the process of recruiting new board directors, including: defining the requisite
quaiifications, skills, experience, and expertise, identifying candidates, reviewing and
interviewing candidates, and making recommendations to the Board

» Ensuring that the Board recruitment process and criteria are inclusive, and based on
principles of merit and fairness. For all Board nominations, it will ensure that the selection
approach is formal and thorough, and provides access to a diverse pool of qualified\
candidates. Appointments will be based on merit, but with due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board, including gender and age;

» For all Board nominations, shortlist will be compiled which must include at least one female
candidate {or any other appropriate diversity attribute). if, at the end of the selection process, a
female candidate (or any other appropriate diversity attribute) is not selected, the Board must
be satisfied that there are objective reasons to support the selection decision.

C. Board Composition
¢ We will review our board composition in terms of the size of the Board, and the number of
nonexecutive directors and executive directors in relation to the overall Board in terms of
requirement of Companies Act, 2013 and equity listing Agreement.
e Our Board aspires to having an appropriate proportion of directors who have direct

experience in our key markets, with different ethnic backgrounds, of both genders, reflecting
our business strategy.
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D. Board Effectiveness

E.

F.

« We strongly believe that a highly effective Board is about chemistry and behaviour,
underpinned by robust processes. Qur Board contains individuals who have diverse skills,
knowledge and experiences that combine to provide different perspectives and effective
board dynamics. In maximizing the Board's effectiveness, we take a long-term, sustainable and
measured approach. We believe that all Board appointments should be based on meritocracy
and that diversity in all its aspects, including gender diversity, is important Policy Statement.

Support Structure

e On an annual basis, we will review the need for diversity training for Board directors. This will
include orientation on diversity-related issues for new directors and strengthening the
knowledge/skills of existing directors to ensure that our diversity goals are met.

* A comprehensive Board orientation will be provided for all new directors, which will include
diversity related topics such as: industry sector information, stakeholders and key relationships,
our strategic plan, legal and regulatory framework, etc.

o We will assist in the development of a pipeline of high-calibre candidates by encouraging a
broad range of senior individuals within the business to take on additional roles to gain
vaiuable Board experience

Monitoring, tracking and Reporting

* The Board will be responsible to approve, monitor and report on diversity at all levels of the
company, including at Board level.

e The Board will ensure that appropriate disclosures are made in the Corporate Governance
section of the Annual Report regarding the Board Diversity. Such report will also include a
summary of this Policy the measurable objectives set for implementing the Policy and progress
made towards achieving those objectives. '

o The Commitiee will discuss and agree annually all measurable objectives for achieving
diversity on the Board and recommend them to the Board for adoption. At any given time the
Board may seek to improve one or more aspects of its diversity and measure progress
accordingly.

» The Nominations and Remuneration Committee will conduct an annual review of this policy
{which will include a review of the effectiveness of the policy) discuss any required changes
with the Board and ensure that any revisions to this policy are approved by the Board.

k3
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G. Operating plan for Readmap Action plan for the coming year:

o Continue to support succession plans and development of the Board;

» Continue to drive the understanding of talent across the organization and support our
development programmed for key employees;

» Continue to review ongoing knowledge and training for all directors; and

e Continue to ensure that the plan for the evolution of non-executive directors over the medium
term to maintain the appropriate mix of skills.

For and on behalf of the Board of
MINDA SAI LIMITED

Place: Gurgaon Ashok Minda
Date: May 21, 2018 CEO & Managing Director Director
DIN: 07252911 DIN: 00054727
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ANNEXURE-II TO DIRECTORS' REPORT

Information as required under Rule 8 (3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is as foilows: -
(A) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:
(i) Steps taken or impact on Conservation of Energy
a) Energy Conservation Measures taken

1. Moulding shop floor Lights changed from 28W to 40 and no of light fitting fixture reduced. With
this initiative saved the 20,018 unit in the year

2. Moulding machine drive changed to induction drive. Now in the ideal condition of the machine,

motor is not working and power is not consuming. With this initiative saved approx. 70,000 units
in the year

3. Inshop floor and canteen area roof lights changed to LED lights

4. Power tactor maintained at 0.99 throughout the year.
5. Rope switches introduced in corporate office lightings

6. Replaced Tb 28W Tube lights to LED 18W in phase manner and saved power consumption 4,000
units per month

(i) Steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate source of energy

1. Transparent sheet and Glass windows has been fixed at roof to use natural day light in day time.
(iii) The Capital Investment on Energy Conservation Equipments

There is no capital Investment made during the year; all the investments are of revenue in nature.

()  TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:

a. Specific areas in which R & D was carried out by the Compdny

i) Battery cable with Aluminum cable prototype developed and offered to OEM’s: One
OFEM has revised the drawing for one project with Aluminum Cable

ii) . Exploring welding process of the terminal to Aluminium cable with Komax: Welding
feasibility analysis done.

iii) Proto type developed for Fuse blow indicator: 7rial planned on vehicle with an OFM
iv) PCB Based Junction Box profect initiated along with SMIT and a design partner from

overseas counlry Identffied.
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v)

vi}

New Stackable Ring terminal for earth connection is under design phase. Same Js
proposed to an OFEM.

Design of ISO Module Box

b. Benefils derived as a result of above efforts

)

i)

Aluminum cable solution can reduce weight and cost of wiring harness. The terminal
design has been done in-house based on benchmarking for a customer

Welding of terminal instead of crimping can help in overcoming creep problem of
aluminum which can occur in crimping

Fuse blow indicator is a system in which the driver will get immediate intimation if there
is any fuse blow for critical circuit. This is meant for the critical function where the driver

“ will not notice anything till the system has reached extreme level of mal function (e.g

vi)

Radiator fan). Having such system will help driver to take action immediately when the
fuse blows

PCB Based junction box is next generation Power distribution system which will become
predominant in high content vehicles like Passenger and Utility Vehicles

Stackable Ring terminal is a simple solution for complex grounding

ISO Module BOX is CAN Junction box. The particular project is for Agriculture
application. This is being developed as per customer RFQ

c. Future Plan of Action

i)

Competency is being created for design and development of PCB based Junction Box:
Project Identified, Partner /dentified, Customer Fngagement planned to start in this
financial year.

Development of FI system connectors for 2W: OBD Il Connector, Water-Proof Connectors
Focus on patents to enhance innovation culture in the company

Application of TPV, TPU

ABS Trailer Socket and Plug development for CV applications

CCS (Copper Clad Steel)Cable Application
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(€)

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, ADAPTATION AND INNOVATION:

Efforts, in the brief, made towards technology absorption, adaptation and innovation.

As part of group initiative, Project-1 {Current business-technology and product gap) there is
continuous mechanism for product benchmarking, prioritizing and development of the project
which is reviewed at different levels.

Engagement with overseas Design houses for joint development of technology product-line like PCB
Junction Box.

Several projects running with SMIT for new product-line development: ISO Module BOX, Fuse Blow
Indicator.

Benefit derived as a result of above efforts e.g. product improvement, cost reduction, product
development, import substitution, etc.

There is increased amount of focus on patent and regular training on patents is being conducted to
spread awareness for patent search and patent filing which, enhances innovation culture in the
organization. The Company filed 3 provisional patents in the year.

The above initiative has brought focus on product benchmarking and global technology trend
which helps in identifying the focus area for technology/product development.

Final specifications have been filed for all provisional patents.
Greater focus on new technology development and development plan in place.

In case of imported technology (imported during the last 3 years reckoned from the beginning of
the financial year) following information may be furnished:

a) Details of technology imported:
Not applicable

b) Year of import - NIL

c) Has technology been fully absorbed?
Not applicable

d) If not fully absorbed areas where this has not taken place, reasons there for and future
plans of action.
Not applicable

Expenditure incurred on Research & Development

The expenditure incurred in the research and development section of the Company is part of
the total operation costs of the Company and no separate accounts are made therefore.
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(D)

TOTAL FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNED AND USED:

Foreign Exchange Earned

FOB Value of Exports 80.1 12.5
Royalty Income 2.8 2.3
Dividend Income 37.5 54.2
Technical Consultancy income 0.1 1.4
Foreign Exchange Used

CIF Value of Raw Material 901.0 5,45.2
Stores & Spares 5.7 4.9
Capital Goods 81.1 57.1
Traveling 3.7 2.1
Technical Consultancy Fees 7.3 16.7

For and on behalf of the Board of
MINDA SAI LIMITED

Place: Gurgaon Ashok Minda
Date: 21.05.2018 CEO & Mahaging Director Director
DIN: 07252911 DiN: 00054727
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ANNEXURE -lll TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT

DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 197 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 5{(2) OF THE
COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014,

A}  THE NAME OF TOP 10 EMPLOYEES IN TERMS OF REMUNERATION DRAWN:-

5. | Name Designation Gross Age Date of | Qualifications | Experienc | Name of | Natute  of
N Remuneration | (In commencem e Previous Employment
o. Drawn Years) | ent of {in Years} Employer
{In Rs.} employment
1 Mr. Sanjeev | CEQ & 18,034,151 52 15-06-2015 B.E. 27 Self Condractual
Saxena Managing {Electrical) business
Director
2 | MV, COO ~-Wiring 6,310,404 49 20-11-2014 B.E (Mech} 29 Minda Confractual
Srinivasan Hamess - PGCBM Cftrgorcﬁo
n
3 | M Jayant S$BU Head - 6,073,608 50 01-04-2014 B.E. {Civil} 27 Minda Confractual
Ashuiosh Component Managem
Tiwari Division ent
R Services
Lid.
4 | Mr, Arun CFO 5,223,644 56 01-07-2009 CA, B.Com 31 Minda Contractual
Wadhwa KTSN,
Germany
5 | Mr. Shishir SBU Head - 41.53,656 44 08-12-2014 B.E. 23 Essel Contractuat
Mishra North Region {Electronics) Propack
Limited
& | Mr.R. Head - 3,868,644 40 13-10-2011 PGDM 21 Airtel Ltd Contractuol
Radhakrishn | Corporaie
an Purchase
7 | Mr. Ritwik Head - 3,032,424 43 09-08-2010 Biploma(Elec 23 Delphi Contractugt
Guha Corporate frical}, CAPM ;locl:crd
; ecinc
Design Engg. Syaterm
8 | Mr. Ajay Head - SBU 2,901,672 42 01-08-2013 B. Com, 20 PT Minda Coniractual
Kumar Finance & M.B.A. Incionesia
Agrawcl Accounts
(South
Region}
9 | Mr. Jagar Head - 2,846,976 45 23-05-201 MDBA , BA 21 Densc Coniraciual
Singh Dangi | Corporaie Haryana
Human Pvt, Lid,
Resources
10 | M Head ~ F&A - 2,579,664 43 26-07-2010 MBA 20 Makino Contractual
Charmendr | [West Region) {Finance) Auto Pyt
a Agarwal Lid.
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B)

C)

D)

EMPLOYED THROUGHOUT THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2018 AND WAS IN
RECEIPT OF REMUNERATION FOR THAT FINANCIAL YEAR, IN THE AGGREGATE, WAS NOT LESS
THAN ONE CRORE TWO LAKH RUPEES:-

Name Designation | Gross Quadlifications | Experience | Date of | Age Name of
remunarction {In Years)} Commencement | (In Previous
{in Rs.) of Empleyment Years) | Employer

Mr. CEQO. & i 18,034,151 | B.E. 27 15-06-2015 52 Self business

Sanjeev | Managing (Electrical)
Saxena [ Director

EMPLOYED FOR A PART OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2018 AND WAS IN
RECEIPT OF REMUNERATION FOR ANY PART OF THAT YEAR, AT A RATE WHICH, IN THE
AGGREGATE, WAS NOT LESS THAN EIGHT LAKH AND FIFTY THOUSAND PER MONTH:-

Name | Designation | Gross Quailifications | Experience | Date of | Age Nome of Previous
remuneration (in Years) Commencement | {in Employer
{in Rs.) of Employment Years)

NIL

EMPLOYED THROUGHOUT THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2018 OR PART THEREOF
WAS IN RECEIPT OF REMUNERATION IN THAT YEAR WHICH, IN THE AGGREGATE, OR AS THE
CASE MAY BE, AT A RATE WHICH, IN THE AGGREGATE IS IN EXCESS OF THAT DRAWN BY THE
MANAGING DIRECTOR OR WID OR MANAGER AND HOLDS BY HIMSELF OR ALONGWITH HIS
SPOUSE AND DEPENDENT CHILDREN, NOT LESS 2% OF THE EQUITY SHARES OF THE COMPANY:

Name | Designation | Gross Quadlifications | Experience | Date of | Age Name of Previous
remuneration {In Years} Commencement | {In Employer
{in Rs.) of Employment Years)

NIL

** NOTES:

Place: Gurgaon Sanj

1) The nature of employment in all above cases is contractual as per the rules and conditions of
the Company.

2) Remuneration includes basic salary, allowances, perquisites, contribution to provident fund and
other funds as per Company Policy.

3) None of the employee own more than 2% of the equity shares of the Company as on March 31,
2018. .

4} No employee is relative of any director or manager of the Company.

' For and on behalf of the Board of

ena Ashok Minda
Date: 21.05.2018 CEO & Managing ‘D@r Director

DIN: 07252911 DIN: 00054727
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ANNEXURE-IV TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

A brief outline of the company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or programmes proposed to
be undertaken and a reference to the Weblink to the CSR policy and projects or programmes.

The Company's focus areas are Education & Skill Development, Health & Weliness and

Environmentat Sustainability. The projects undertaken are within the broad framework of Schedule
VIl of the Companies Act, 2013.

The CSR Policy recognizes that corporate social responsibility is not merely compliance inter-alia,
includes that it is a commitment to support initiatives that measurably promote education, including
special education & employment enhancing vocational skills especially among children, women,
elderly & the differently-abled & livelihcod enhancement projects as notified under Schedule Vil of

Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013 and Companies {(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy)
Rules 2074.

Web link to the CSR Policy of the Company:

httpfwww.minda.co.in/msl/downloads/Policy%20o0n%20Corporate%20Social%20Responsibility.pdf

1. The Composition of the CSR Committee
Mr. Avinash Parkash Gandhi, Chairman (Independent Director)
Mr. Ramesh Chandra Jain, Member (Independent Director)
Mr. Sanjeev Saxena, Member {CEQ & Managing Director)

2. Average net profit of the Company for immediately preceding three financial years:

Average net profit: Rs. 379.5 Million
3. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (2% of the amount as in item 3 above)

The Company is required to spend Rs. 8 Million (including Rs 0.3 Million unspent in the previous
year)

4. Details of CSR spent during the financial year

(a) Total amount spent for the financial year Rs. 8 Million

(b} Amount unspent, if any: Nil

(€} Manner in which the amount spent during the financial yedr is detaited below:
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(n {2} (3) {4} {5) (6} (7} (8)
sl CSR project | Sector in which Projecis or programs (1) Amount Amount spent | Cumulative Amount Spent
No. | or activity the Project is Local area or other (2) outlay on the Expenditure Direct or
identified covered Specify the State and (budget) projects or up to the through
district where projects or project or pregrams reporting implementing
programs were programs Sub-heads: period agency®
undertaken, wise (1)Direct {Rs. In million) | (Rs. In million)
{Rs. In expenditure
. on projects or
million) programs (2)
Overheads
(Rs. In miliion)

1. Contibution | Promoting 8 8 8 8 {Through
to Spark Employmeni & Chenndi, G. Noida & Pune Implementation
Minda enhancing Agency)
Foundation | Vocational skills

2. Promofing & | Promoting & - - -

Preventing Preventing Health | Surajpur, Greater Noida

Hedlth Care | Care & Sanilation

& Sanitafion .
Total 8 8 8

December 06, 2014 for the purpose of carrying out the CSR activities of the Group.

Details of implementing agency: Spark Minda Foundation is a Section 8 Company incorporated on

5. in case the Company has failed to spend the two per cent of the average net profit of the last three
financial years or any part thereof, the company shall provide the reasons for not spending the
amount in its Board report:- The entire amount was spent.

6. The CSR Committee of the Company hereby confirms that the implemeniation and monitoring of
CSR Policy. is in compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the Company.

Fo

inda SAYLimite

Sanjeev$axena
CEO & Muanaging Director
DIN: 07252911

For CSR Committee of Minda SAI Limited

Avinash Parkash Gandhi
Chdirman of CSR Commitiee
DIN; 00161107
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ANNEXURE-V TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN AS ON THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31.03.2018

[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014]

FORM NO. MGT-9

|. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

CIN U31905DL1981PLC127345

Registration Date April 16, 1981

Name of the Company MINDA SAI LIMITED

Category / Sub-Category of the Company Public Company having Share Capital

having Share Capital
Address of the Registered Office and contact | A-15, Ashok Vihar, Phase-l, Delhi-110052
details Tel: 0120-4723300

Website- www.mindd.co.in

Whether listed company No
Name, address and contact details of Not Applicable
Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any

il. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

Sl. No. Name and Description of main NIC Code of the % to total turnover of
roducts / services Product/ service the company
1 Manufacture of Wiring Harness 27320 94 %

lIl. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES -

51. No[Name and Address of the CIN/GLN Holding/ % of Applicable
Company Subsidiary/| shares Section
Associate | aid

1 | Minda Corporation Limited L74899DL1985PLC020401 [Holding 100% | 2(46) & 2(87)
A-15, Ashok Vihar, Phase-l, Delhi-
110052

2 | Almighty International Pte. Ltd. Foreign Company Subsidiary 100% 2(87)
20 Cecil Street #14-01 Equity
Plaza Singapore 049705
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110052

3 | Minda Steneridge
Instruments Limited
A-15, Ashok Vihar, Phase-l,Delhi

U74899DL1995PLC066645 [Subsidiary 51%

2(87)

Building,

4 | El Labs india Private Limited
Ne.i50/151,
Meenakshi Lake side Meenakshi

Bangalore KA 560076 IN

G-1 Ground Floor,

Kaleng Agraharag

U73100KA2004PTC033241 [Subsidiary 100%

2(87)

5 | PT Minda Automotive Indonesia
Jl.Permata Lot CA-8,
KawasanlndustrikllC, Karawang,
West Java 41361, INDONESIA

Foreign Company Step Down 100%

Subsidiary

2(87)

é | PT Minda Automotive Trading
Permata Raya Lot CA-8, Kawasan
Industry, KIIC, Karawang, Jawg,
Barat-41341, Indonesia

Foreign Company Step Down 100%

Subsidiary

2(87)

7 | Minda

Vietnam

Vietnam  Automotive| Foreign Company Step Down 100%
Company Limited

Binh Xuyen Industrial Zone, Binh
Xuyen Distric, Vinh Phuc Province,

Subsidiary

2(87)

V. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN {Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

i) Category-wise Shareholding

Category of No. of shares held at the beginning of the | No. of shares held ot the end of the year %
Shareholders yeadr Change
Demat Physical | Total % of Demat Physical | Total of during
Total Total the
Shares Shares | year
A. Promoters
(1) Indian

&) Individual/HUF

b) Central Govt.

c) State Govt.(s)

d) Bodies
Corporate

- FR77108 | 7077108 | 100%

- 7077108 | 7077108 100%

e) Banks/ Fl

1) Any Other

Sub-Total
(A1)

- 7077108 | 7077108 | 100%

- 7077108 | 7077108 100%

(2) Foreign

a} NRis-
Individuals

b} Other-
Individuals

¢) Bodies
Corporate

d) Banks/ Fl

e} Any Other

Sub-Total {A)(2)

Total
Shareholding of
Promoters
(A)=(A)(T}+{AN2)

- 7077108 | 7077108 | 100%

- 7077108 | 7077108 100%
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B. Public
Shareholding

1) Institutions

a) Mutual Funds/
uTl

b) Banks/ Fi

¢} Central Gowt,

d) State Gowvt.(s)

e) Venture Capital
Funds

1) Insurance
Companies

g) Flls

h} Foreign Venture
Capital Funds

i) Others {specify)

Sub-Total {B){1)

{2} Non-
Institutions

a) Bodies
Corporate

i) Indian

i) Overseqas

b} Individuals

i) Individual
Shareholders
holding nominal
share capital upte
Rs. 1 lakh

i) Individual
Sharehelders
holding nominal
share capital in
excess of Rs. 1
lakh

¢} Others {specify)

Sub-Total {B}{(2}

Total Public
Sharehoelding

(B)=(8)(1)+(B)(2)

C. Shares held by
Custodian for
GDRs & ADRs

Grand Total
{A+B+C)

- 7077108

7077108 | 100%

7077108

7077108

100% i -

i) Shareholding of Promoters

Shareholding qt‘t{girbegmnmg otthe Shareholding at the end of tha year
% of % change in
Shareholder' % of tatal % of Shares % of total Shares shareholdin
s Name No. of shares of Pledged/enc No. of h ° o gf th Pledged/en | g during the
Shares the umbered to Shares 8 Cura e cumbered year
Company | total shares ompany to total
shares
Mindg ‘
Corporation 7077108 100% - 7077108 100% - -
Limited
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iii) Change in Promoter's Shareholding

Shareholding at the beginning of the .
year Cumulative Shareholding during the year
% of total shares of % of total shares of
No. of Shares the Company No. of Shares the Company
At the beginring of the 7077108 100% 7077108 100%
No change - - - .
At the end of the year 7077108 100% 7077108 100%

iv) Shareholding Pattern of Top Ten Shareholders {Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs

and ADRs)

For each of the Top 10 Shareholders

Shareholding at the beginning of the

year

Shareholding at the end of the year

No. of Shares

% of total shares ot
the Company

No. of Shares

% of total shares of
the Company

v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

Shareholding at the beginning of the
year

Cumulative Shareholding during the year

Directors/ Key
Managerial Personnel

No. of Shares

%of total shares of
the Company

No. of Shares

%of total shares of
the Company

At the beginning of the
year

None of the Director/ Key Managerial Personnel hold shares in the Company

Date wise
Increase/Decrease in
shareholding during
the year specifying ihe
reasons for increase/
decredase

None of the Director/ Key Managerial Personnel hold shares in the Company

Al the end of the year

None of the Director/ Key Managerial Personnel hold shares in the Company

V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

{Amount in Million)

Indebtedness
Details

Securad Loans
{ Long Term)

Secured Loans
{ Short Term)

Unsecured
Loans
{Long Term)

Unsecured
Loans
(Short Term}

Total
Indebtedness

Deposits

Indebtedness
af the
beginning of
ihe financial
year

i} Principal -
Armount

186

246

380

- 1.080
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indebtedness Secured Loans Secured Loans Unsecured Unsecured Deposits Total
Detuails { Long Term} ( Short Term) Loans Loans Indebtedness
{Long Term} {Short Term)

ii) Inferest due - - - R N
but not paid

iitinterest 1 : 1
accrued but
net due

Total (i+ii+iil) 187 268 246 380 . 1,081

Change in
Indebtedness
during the
financial year

Addition 28 52 348 - 428

Reduction 74 155 - 229

Net Change (46) 52 (155) 348 - 199

Indebtedness
at the end of
the financial
year

i} Principal 141 320 94 728 " 1,283
Amount i

i) Interest due
but not paid

iii) Interest - . -
accrued but
not due

Total {i+ii+iii) 141 320 ?4 728 1,283

Vi. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration o Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

(Amount in Rs.)

Si. No. Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ | Total Amount
Manager

Mr. Sanjeev
Saxena
{CEO & MD)

1. Gross salary
{a} Salary as per provisions contained in section 1,34,75,112 1,34,75112
17{1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961

(b} Value of perquisites u/s 17{2) Income-tax Act, 39,600 392,600
1941

(c) Profiis in lieu of salary under section 17(3} - -
Income- tax Act, 1961

2. Stock Option - . -

o

Sweat Equity - -

4. Commission [Variable pay)
- as % of profit - -
- others, specify... 34,51,110 34.51,110

5. Others, please specify
Contribution to Provident Fund & Other funds 10,70,329 10,706,329

Total (A) 1.80,36,151 1,80,36,151

k3
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Ceiling as per Act Rs. 325.97 Lacs being 5% of the net profit of the Company, calculated as per Section 198 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

B. Remuneration to other directors:

(Amount in Rs.)

S.No

Particulars of
Remuneration

Name of Director

Total Amount

Mr. Avinash | Mr.
Parkash
Gandhi

Ramash | Mr.
Chandra Jain

Parveen
Gupta

Independent
Directors

» Fee for attending
board &
committee
meetings

2,20,000

2,20,000

1,50,000

5,%0,000

+  Commission

+  Others, please
specify

Total (1)

2,20,000

2,20,000

1,50,000

5,90,000

Other Non-Executive
Directors

* Fee for attending
board
&committee
meetings

= Commission

Total (2)

Total (B) = (1 + 2)

2,20,000

2,20,000

1,50,600

5,90,000

Total Managerial
Remuneration (A+B)

1,86,26,151

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD

(Amount in Rs.)

Sl. Particuiars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
No.
Company CFO Total
Secretary Mr. Arun
Mr. Pardeep Wadhwa
Mann
1. Gross salary
(@) Salary as  per  provisions 18,77,460 . 48,44,168 67,21,628
contained in section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961
(B) Value of perquisites ufs 17(2)
21,600 54,000
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sl. Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
No.
Company CFO Total
Secretary Mir. Arun
Mr. Pardeep Wacdhwa
Mann
income-tax Act, 1961 32,400
{c) Profits in lieu of salary under
section 17(3) Income-tax Act,
1961 -
Stock Cption - -
Sweat Equity - -
Commission
- as % of profit -
- others, specify... - -
5. Others, please specify
Contribution Te Provident Fund 1,40,810 3,47.,076 4,87,886
Total 20,39,870 52,23,644 72,653,514
Vil.  PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPUNDING OF OFFENCES
Type Section of the Brief Detdlls of Penalty/ Authority Appeal
Companies Act Description Punishment/ [RD/NCLT/COURT] | made, if
Compounding fees any (give
imposed Details)
A. COMPANY
Penalty NIL
Punishment
Compounding
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty NiL
Punishment
Compounding
C.OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty NIL
Punishment
Compounding

Place: Gurgaon
Date: 21.05,2018

Sanjeev Saxepa—"""
CEO & Mdnaging Director

DIN: 07252211

For and on behalf of the Board of
MINDA SAI LIMITE

(‘_‘_____W___,..‘-'
Ashok Minda

Director
DIN: 00054727
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Minda SAI Limited

Notes

to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2618

Significant Accounting Policies

L

Reporting entity

Minda SAI Limited (the ‘Company’) is a company domiciled in India, with its registered office situated
at A-15, Phase -1 Ashok Vihar, Delhi - 110052. The Company has been incorporated under the
provisions of Indian Companies Act. The Company is primarily involved in manufacturing of
Automobile Components and Parts thereof.

Significant accounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these
financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation
(i) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) as per the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2033, (the 'Act), Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) {(Amendment) Rules,
2016 and other relevant provisions of the Act (“financial statements™).

For all the periods up to and including 31 March 2017, the financial statements were prepared in
accordance with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013,
read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and other relevant provisions
of the Act (“Previous GAAP”). The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 are the
Company’s first financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS, therefore, Ind AS 101, First
time adoption of Indian Accounting standards has been applied. An explanation of how the transition to
ind AS has affected the previously reported financial position, financial performance and cash flows of
the Company is provided in Note 2.46.

The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 21 May
2018
g .

(i5} Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:

i .
i ltems Measurement Basis

Certain financial assets and liabilities (including FFair Value
derivatives instruments)

Liabilities for equity-settled share-based payment | Fair Value
arrangements

. Net defined benefit(assets)/liability Plan assets measured at fair value

-~
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No s to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

(iii) Use of estimates and judgment

In preparation of these financial statements, management has made judgments, estimates, and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting
estimates are recognised prospectively.

Judgements

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant
effects on the amounts recognised in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

. leases: whether an arrangement contains a lease

. lease classification- Note 2.37

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

. Recognition and estimation of tax expense including deferred tax— Note 2.17

. Assessment of useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible asset — Note 2.1

. Estimation of obligations relating to employee benefits: key actuarial assumptions —Note 2.45

. Valuation of Inventories — Note 2.7

° Share based payments — Note 2.42

. Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingency: Key assumption about the
likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources — Note 2.38

. Fair value measurement — Note 2.34

iv) Measurement of fair values

A number of accounting policies and disclosures require measurement of fair values, for both financial
and non-financial assets and liabilities.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in
the valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as
far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different
levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the
same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire
measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting

period during which the change has occurred. Also, fair value of financial instruments measured at
amortised cost is disclosed in Note 2.34.

d
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B. Current-non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based om current/non-current
classification.

Assets:

An asset is treated as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

(1) It is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal
operating cycle;

(2) 1tis held primarily for the purpose of being traded:

(3) 1tis expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or

(4) 1t is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to seitle a liability
for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

The Company classifies all other assets as non-current.

Liabilities:

A Hability is classified as current when it satisfics any of the following criteria:

(1} It is expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;

(2} 1tis held primarily for the purpose of being traded:;

(3) 1t is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

(4) The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settiement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty,
result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

The Company classifies all other Labilities as non-current,

Deferred 1ax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities respectively.
C. Sammary of significant accounting policies
i} Foreign carrency transactions and translations
Functional and presentation currency

The management has determined the currency of the primary cconomic environment in which the
Company operates i.c., functional currency, to be Indian Rupees (Rs.). All amount have been rounded —
off'to the nearest million Rupees unless otherwise indicated. Further, at some place “- are also put up
to value below Rs. 500,000 to make financial in round off to Rupees in millions

Transactions and Balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of transactions and monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies as at the
balance sheet date, are translated at the balance sheet date exchange rates. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date exchange rates are generally
recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the daie when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on assets and
liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For example, franslation
differences on non-monetary assets and labilities such as equity instruments (other than investment in
subsidiaries and joint ventures) held at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in statement of
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profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or foss and translation differences on non-monetary assets
such as equity investments (other than investment in subsidiaries and joint ventures) classified as
FVOCT are recognised in other comprehensive income.

The derivative financial instruments such as forward exchange contracts to hedge its risk associated
with foreign currency fluctuation are stated at fair value. Any gains or losses arising from changes in
fair value are taken directly to the statement of profit or loss.

ii) Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criterion must
also be met before revenue is recognised:

sale of goods

Sales include sale of manufactured goods, traded goods, tools, moulds and dies. Revenue is recognised
on transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership to the customers and no significant uncertainty
exists regarding the amount of the consideration that will be derived from the sale of products as well as
regarding its collection. Sale of goods is inclusive of excise duty and is net of sales fax, GST.value
added tax, applicable discounts and allowances and sales returns, if any.

Export benefits .

Lxport incentive entitlements are recognised as income when the right to receive credit as per the terms
of the scheme is established in respect of the exports made and where there is no uncertainty regarding
the ultirmate collection of the relevant export proceeds.

Other operating income

service income including job work income is recognised as per the terms of contracts with cusiomers
when the related services are rendered. Income from royalty, technical know-how arrangements is
recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the relevant agreement.

Dividend and interest income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the income is established. Income from
interest on deposits, loans and interest bearing securities is recognised using the effective interest
method,

iii) Property, plant and equipment
{2) Recognition and measurement
Item of property, plant and equipment are carried at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated

depreciation, Cost comprises the purchase price and any cost attributable for bringing the asset to its
working condition for its intended use.

Advance paid towards the acquisition of fixed assets are shown under non-current asset and tangible
fixed assets under construction are disclosed as capital work-in-progress. Capital work in Progress
includes cost of assets at site, direct and indirect expenditure incidental 1o construction and interest on
the funds deployed for construction.

@
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(b} Transition to knd AS

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its property,
plant and equipment recognised as at 1 April 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that
carrying value as the deemed cost of property, plant and equipment.

{¢) Subscquent costs

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. The costs of the day to day servicing
of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.

(d) Derecognition
Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing
the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment, and are

recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

(¢) Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on the straight-line method at the rates
reflective of the estimated useful life of the assets estimated by the management.

Depreciation on addition to property plant and equipment is provided on pro-raia basis from the date the
assets are ready 1o use. Depreciation on sale/deduction from property, plant and equipment is provided
upto the date of sale, deduction as the case may be.

Premium paid on leaschold land and site development is amortised over the period of lease. Leaschold
Improvements are amortised on the straight-line basis over the lower of primary period of lease.

Depreciation on leased assets 1s in line with the depreciation policy of the Company and is depreciated
over the lower of useful life of such assets and the lease period.

iv) Intangible Asset
a) Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets comprises computer software at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment, i any.

Cost of intangible assets under development as at the reporting date are disclosed as intangible assets
under development,

b) Transition to Ind AS
On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its

intangible assets recognised as at 1 April 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that
carrying value as the deemed cost of intangible assets.
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¢) Subsequent costs

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

(d) Derecognition

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of intangible assets are determined by comparing the proceeds
from disposal with the carrying amount of intangible assets and are recognised in the statement of profit
and toss.

{e} Amortisation

The intangible assets are amortised over the period of five to Six years, which in the management’s
view represent the economic useful life. Amortisation expense is charged on a pro-rata basis for assets
purchased during the year. The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period.

V) Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or development of
qualifying assets are capitalized. Capitalization of borrowing costs ceases when substantially all the
activitics necessary to prepare the qualifying assets for their intended uses are complete. Qualifying
assels are assets which take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.
Borrowing costs include exchange differences arising {rom foreign currency borrowings 1o the extent
that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an
expense in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which they are incurred.

vi) Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. The basis of determination of cost for
various categories of inventory is as follows:

Raw materials, components and stores : Cost is determined on weighted average basis.
and spares and stock in trade

Finished goods : Material cost plus appropriate share of labour and
production overheads. Cost of finished goods
includes excise duty, wherever applicable.

Work in progress : Material cost plug appropriate share of the labour
and production overheads depending upon the
stage of completion, wherever applicable.

Tools, moulds and dies Material cost plus appropriate share of the labour
and production overheads, depending upon the
stage of completion and includes excise duty,
wherever applicable.
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vii)  Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment considering the provisions of Ind AS 36
‘Impairment of Assets’, If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair
vilue less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific {0 the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be
tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets
(the “cash-generating unit”, or “CGU™).

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in
respect of CGUs are reduced from the carrying amounts of the asscts of the CGU,

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications
that ihe loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only
to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment oss had been recognised.

viii)  Government Grant and Subsidies

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that
the grant will be received and the Company will comply with all the attached conditions.

Government grant relating to income are deferred and recognised in the statement of profit and loss
over the period necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended io compensate and
presented within other income other than export benefits which are accounted for in the year of export
based on eligibility and there is no uncertainty in receiving the same.

Government grants relating to purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in non-current
liabilities as deferred income and are credited to the statement of profit and Joss on a straight line basis
over the expected lifes of the related assets and presented within income.

ix) Employee Benefits
Short — term employee benefits
All employee benefits payable/available within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as

short-term empioyee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages and bonus ete., are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

Defined contribution plan:

Provident fand: Bligible employees of the Company receive benefits from the provident fund, which is
a defined contribution plan. Both the employees and the Company make monthly contributions to the
provident fund (with Regional Provident Fund Commissioner) equal to specified percentage of the
covered employee’s basic salary. The Company has no further obligations under the plan beyond its
monthly contributions.
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Defined benefit plan;

Gratuity: The Company provide for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement Plan (the “Gratuity Plan™)
covering cligible employees. The Plan provides payment to vested employees at retirement, death or
termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee’s salary and the tenure of
employment with the Company. Liabilities related to the Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial
valuation as a{ the balance sheet date.

Other long term employee benefit:

Compensated absence: Un-availed Jeaves for the year are accumulated and allowed to carried over to
the next year and are within service period of the employees in accordance with the service rules of the
Company. Provision for compensated absence is made by the Company based on the amount payable as
per the above service, based on actuarial valuation as at the balance sheet date.

Other employee benefit plans:
Actuarial valuation:

The hability in respect of all defined benefit plans and other long term employee benefit is accrued in
the books of account on the basis of actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary primarily
using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each vear of service as giving rise to
additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measure each unit separately 1o build up the final
obligation. The obligation is measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows.

The discount rates used for determining the present value of obligation under defined benefit plans, is
based on the market yields on Government securities as at the Balance Sheet date, having maturity
periods approximating to the terms of related obligations.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in the Statement of profit and loss. Gains or
fosses on the curtailment or settlement of any defined benefit plan are recognised when the curtailment
or seftlement occurs.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income.
They are included in “other equity” in the statement of Changes in Equity and in the Balance Sheet.

x) Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease, transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

a) Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease

For arrangements entered into prior to 1 April 2016, the Company has determined whether the
arrangement cortains lease on the basis of facts and circumstances existing on the date of transition.

At inception or on reassessment of the arrangement that contains a lease, the payments and other
consideration required by such an arrangement are separated into those for the Jease and those for other
elements on the basis of their relative fair values. If it is concluded for a finance lease that it is
impracticable to separate the payments reliably, then an asset and a liability are recognised at an amount
equal to the fair value of the underlying asset. The lability is reduced as payments are made and an
imputed finance cost on the liability is recognised using the incremental borrowing rate.
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Where the Company is lessee

Asscts taken on lease by the Company in the capacity of a lessee, where the Company has substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance lease. Such leases are capitalized at the
inception of the lease at the lower of the fair value or the present value of the minimum lease payments
and a liability is created for an cquivalent amount. Each lease rental paid is allocated between the
liability and the interest cost so as to obtain a constant periodic rate of interest on the outstanding
liability for cach year.

Lease arrangements where the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset substantiaily vest
with the lessor, are recognised as operating leases. Lease rentals under operating leases are recognised
in the statement of profit and loss on a straight line basis.

Where the Company is lessor

Leases in which the Company transfers substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset
are classified as finance Icases, Assets given under finance Jease are recognised as a receivable at an
amount equal to the net investments in the fease,

After initial recognition, the Company apportions lease rentals between the principal repayment and
interest income so as 1o achieve a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in
respect of the finance lease. The interest income is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Initial
direct costs such as legal costs, brokerage costs efc, are recognised immediately in the statement of
profit and loss.

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of
the asset are classified as operating leases. Assetls subject to operating leases are included in fixed
assets. Lease mcome on operating lease is recognised in the statement of profit and loss on a straight
line basis over the lease term. Costs including depreciation are recognised as an expense in the
statement of profit and loss. Initial direct costs such as legal costs, brokerage costs ele, are recognised
mmmediately in the statement of profit and loss.

xi) Investments

Investments that are readily realisable and intended to be held for not more than a year from the date of
acquisition are classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as noncurrent
investments, However, that part of long term investments which is expected to be realised within 12
months after the reporting date is also presented under “current assets’ as “current portion of long term
imvestments™ in consonance with the current/ non-current classification scheme.

Investments in subsidiaries and joint venture

The Company’s investment includes investments in substdiaries and investments in joint ventures.
Investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an
indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed and written down
immediately to its recoverable amount. On disposal of investments in subsidiaries, the difference
between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts are recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

A joint venture is an arrangement in which the Company has joint control and has rights to the net
assets of the arrangement, rather than rights to its assets and obligations for its labilities.
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Upon first-time adoption of Ind AS, the Company has elected to measure its investments in subsidiaries
at the previous GAAP carrying amount as its deemed cost on the date of transition to Ind AS Le.. ]
April 2016.

Interests in joint ventures are accounted at cost which includes transaction costs.

xii)  Income taxes

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in statement of profit and loss
except 10 the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity.

(a) Cuarrent tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted and as applicable at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.

(by Dreferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and lLiabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. Deferred
tax assets unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/ reduced
to the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be
realised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the probability of deferred tax
asset. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Mimimum Alternative Tax (“MAT”) credit entiflement under the provisions of the Income-tax Act,
1961 is recognised as a deferred tax asset when it is probable that future economic benefit associated
with it in the form of adjustment of future income tax liability, will flow to the Company and the asset
can be measured reliably. MAT credit entitlement is set off to the extent allowed in the year in which
the Company becomes liable to pay income taxes at the enacted tax rates. MAT credit entitlement is
reviewed at each reporting date and is recognised to the extent that is probable that future taxabie
profits will be available against which they can be used. MAT credit entitlement has been presented as
deferred tax asset in consolidated balance sheet, Significant management judgement is required to
determine the probability of recognition of MAT credit entitlement.

Deterred tax assets and liabilitics are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or
simultaneously.

xiif)  Earnings per Share
Basic earnings/(loss) per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable
to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted Tor events of
bonus issue and share split. For the purpose of caleulating diluted earnings/ (loss) per share, the net
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profit or loss for the year altrilnnahle {o equity shareholders and the weighted average numbey of shares
outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares, The
dilutive potential equity shaws are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless they have
been issued at a later date,

The number of shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all periods
presented for any share splits and bonus shares issues including for changes effected prior to the
approval of the financial statements by the Board of Directors.

xiv)  Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A provision is created when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event and it is more Jikely
than not that there will be an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits to settle such
obligation and the amount of such obligation can be reliably estimated. If the effect of the time value of
money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value money and risks specific to the liability.
When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as finance

cost. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted 1o reflect current management
estimates,

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that have arisen from past events
and the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of future events
not wholly within the control of the Company. When there is a possible obligation or a present
obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or
disclosure is made,

Provision for onerous contracts, i.e. contracts where the expected unavoidable costs of meeting the
obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under if, are
recognised when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle a present obligation as a result of an obligating event, based on a reliable estimate of
such obligation.

The Company does not recognise assets which are of contingent nature until there is virtual cerfainty of
realisability of such assets. However, subsequently, if it becomes virtually certain that an inflow of
economic benefits will arise, asset and related income is recognised in the financial statements of the
period in which the change occurs.

xXv) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivaients comprise cash balances on hand, cash balance with bank, and highly liquid
investments with maturity period of three months or less from the date of investment.

xvi)  Accounting for warranty
Warranty costs are estimated by the Company on the basis of technical evaluation and past experience
of costs. Provision is made for the estimated liability in respect of warranty costs in the year of

recognition of revenue and is included in the statement of profit and loss. The estimates used for
accounting for warranty costs are reviewed periodically and revisions are made as and when required.
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xvii)  Research and Development

Revenue expenditure on research is expensed off under the respective heads of account in the year in
which it is incurred.

Capitalised development expenditure is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses, 1f any. Property, plant and equipment used for research and development are depreciated in
accordance with the Company’s policy as stated above, Expenditure incurred at development phase,
where 1t s reasonably certain that outcome of development will be commercially exploited fo yield
economic benefits to the Company, is considered as an intangible asset and amortized over the
estimaied life of the assets.

xviif) Finaneial instrumenis

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
hiability or equity instrument of another entity.

Enitial recognition and measurement
Trade recetvables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated, All other

{inancial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A linancial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value
through profii and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or
issue. )

Classification and sebsequent measurement

Financial assets
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at
- Amortised cost,

- Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period
the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

- the asset is held within a business mode] whose objective is 1o hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Financial asseis are measured at
FVTPL. This includes all derivatives financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may
irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirement to be measured at amortised
cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismaich
that would otherwise arise,

Financial assets: Business model assessment
The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is

held at a porifotio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is
provided 1o management.- The information considered includes:
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- the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. These
include whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a
particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related
liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

- how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s management;

- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and how those risks are managed;

- how managers of the business are compensated — e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value
of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such
sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not
considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company’s continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial Assets: Assessment whether contractuat cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest. .

For the purposes of this assessment, “principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on
initial recognition. “Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit
risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other
basic fending risks and costs (e.g. Hquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the
financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash
flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;
- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;
- prepayment and extension features; and

- terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non recourse
features),

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the
prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional compensation for early termination of the
contract. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a significant discount or premium to its
contractual par amount, a feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially
represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest (which may also
include reasonable additional compensation for early termination) is treated as consistent with this
criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition.
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Compound financial instruments- investment in preference share

Investment in redeemable preference share are considered as compound financial instruments and are
measured at amortised cost and bifurcated into asset and equity component based on the terms of the
contract.

The assets component of preference share is initially recognised at the amortised cost. The equity
component is initially recognised at the difference between the amortised cost of the compound

tinancial instrument as a whole and amount actually invested.

subsequent Lo Initial recognition, the assets component of a compound financial instrument is measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.,

Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets | These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses,
at

FVTPL including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss.
However, see Note 2.34 for derivatives desipgnated as hedging instruments.

Financial assets | These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
at
cost income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in

amortised | interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest

profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial labilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVIPL. A financial Hability is
classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as
such on initial recognition. Financial [iabilities at FVTPL. are measured at fair value and net gains and
losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition

Financial Assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in
witich the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but
retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred
assels are not derecognised.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expire,

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows
under the moditfied terms are substantialiy different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the
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maodified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
lability L\lmgunshud and the new f{inancial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or foss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet
when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and
it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the Hability simultancously,

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Fhe company holds derivative financial instruments such as foreign exchange forward contracts to
mitigate the risk of changes in exchange rates on foreign currency exposures. The counterparty for these
contracts is generally a bank. Embedded derivatives are separated from the host contract and accounted
for separately if the host contract is not a financial asset and certain criteria are met,

Dertvatives are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are
measured at fair value, and changes therein are generally recognised in profit or foss.

The Company designates certain derivatives as hedging instruments to hedge the variability in cash
ftows associated with highly probable forecast transactions arising from changes in foreign exchange
rates.

Al meeption of designated hedging relationships, the Company documents the risk management
objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The Company also documents the economic
relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument, including whether the changes in
cash flows of the hedged item and hedging instrument are expected to offset each other.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on:

- financial assets measured at amortised cost;

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost. A
financial asset is “credit-impaired® when one or more events that have a defrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit- impaired includes the following observable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

- a breach of contract such as a default or being past due for 90 days or more;

- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on terms that the Group would not consider
otherwise;

- it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptey or other financial reorganisation; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected cr Ldlt losses, except
{or the following, which are measured as 12 month expected credit losses:

iy
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- debt securities that are determined 1o have low credit risk af the reporting date: and

- other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default OCCUITIRNG
over the expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial
recognition.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected
credit losses.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument,

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the
instrument is less than 12 months).

tn all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This include both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and
mformed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than
30 days past due.

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when:

- the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without recowse by the
Company to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or

- the financial asset is 90 days or more past due.

The Company considers a debt security to have low credit risk when its credit risk rating is equivalent
to ‘investment grade’ e.g. BBB or higher as per rating agency [S&P and/ or CRISIL].

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive).

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets.

Write-off
The gross carrying amount of a {inancial asset is written off (cither partially or in full) fo the exient that

there is no realistic prospect of recovery, This is generally the case when the Company determines that
the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay
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the amounts subject to the write-ofl. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject
to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts
due.

xix)  Employee stock option schemes

Certain employees of the Company are in receipt of stock options from Minda Corporation Limited.
The grant date fair value of options granted to employees of the Company is recognised as an employee
expense, with a corresponding increase in capital reserve, over the period that the employees become
unconditionally entitled to the options. The expense is recorded for each separately vesting portion of
the award as if the award was, in substance, multiple awards. The increase in equity recognised in
connection with share based payment transaction is presented as a separate component in equity under
“capital reserve”. The amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of stock
options that vest. For the option awards, grant date fair value is determined under the option-pricing
model (Black- Scholes Merton). Forfeitures are estimated at the time of grant and revised, if necessary,
in subsequent perjods if actual forfeitures materially differ from those estimates.

xx}  Recent accounting pronouncements

A Ind AS 115- Revenue from Contract with Customers: On 28 March 2018, Ministry of Corporate
AfTairs ("MCA") has notified the Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contract with Customers.

Ind AS 115, establishes a comprehiensive framework for determining whether, how much and when
revenue should be recognised. It replaces existing revenue recognition guidance, including Ind AS 18
Revenue. Ind AS 115 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2018 and will be
applied accordingly.

The Company has completed an initial assessment of the potential impact of the adoption of Ind AS 115
on accounting policies followed in its financial statements. The quantitative impact of adoption of Ind
AS 115 on the financial statements in the period of initial application is not reasonably estimable as at
present.

Sale of goods

For the sale of products, revenue is currently recognised when the goods are delivered to the customers’
premises, which is taken to be the point in time at which the customer accepts the goods and the refated
risks and rewards of ownership are transferred. Revenue is recognised at this point provided that the
revenue and costs can be measured reliably, the recovery of the consideration is probable and there is no
continuing management involvement with the goods.

Under Ind AS 115, revenue will be recognised when a customer obtains control of the goods.
Transition

The Company plans to apply Ind AS 115 using the cumulative effect method, with the effect of initially
applying this standard recognised at the date of initial application (i.e. 1 April 2018) in retained
earnings. As a result, the Company will not present relevant individual line items appearing under
comparative period presentation.

A. Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration:

On 28 March 2018, Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") has notified the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018 containing Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Foreign
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currency transactions and advance consideration which clarifies the date of the transaction for the
purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or
income, when an entity has received or paid advance consideration in a foreign currency.

The amendment will come into force from 1 April 2018.the Company has evaluated the effect of this
on the financial statements and the impact is not material,



Minda SAI Limited
Balance Sh#€ctas at 31 March 2018

(Amount in mitlion)

Note As at As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 I April 2016
ASSETS
Non-currems tasets
Property, plzantind equipment 2.1 1,114 999 985
Capital work=-Inprogress 2.1 12 8 2
Other intangz ible assets 2.1(a) 31 12 17
Intangible a=set under development 2.1(b) - 11 -
FFancial asscts
i Invest meis 22 1,293 1,222 1,221
il Loans 2.3 26 24 23
iii.  Other fimncial assets 2.4 | - .
Income tax zassds 2.5 2 8 9
Other non-ceurent assets 2.6 14 2 4
2,493 2,286 2,261
Current assets
Inventories 2.7 964 704 721
Financial assects
i Trade recevables 2.8 2,053 1,406 1,238
ii.  Cash and tash equivalents 2.9 1 2 4
iii.  Other bank balances 2.10 3 3 3
iv.  Loans 2.11 14 2 2
v.  Other finncial assets 2.12 17 152 43 \
Other currernt asscts 2.13 87 77 63
3,199 2,346 2,074
TOTAL ) 5,692 4,632 4,335
|
EQUITY ANDLIABILITIES |
Equity . |
Equity share capital 2.14 708 708 708 |
Other equity 2.15 1.844 1,554 1,142
2,552 2,262 1,850
LIABILITI ES
Non-curren t liabilities |
Fimancial Liahliies ‘ [
Borrow ings 2.16 106 207 292
Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 2.17 44 26 36
Provisions 2,18 57 68 55 ‘
Other non-current liabilities 2.19 8§ 12 15 |
215 313 398 ‘
Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities [
I Borrowings 2.20 1,048 648 890
ii. Trade payables 2.21 1,579 1,033 881 |
1. Other Cinancial liabilitics 222 235 295 260
Other current liabilities 2,23 3l 42 36 ‘
Provisions ) 2.24 3 2 2
Current tax liabilitics 2.25 29 37 18
2,925 2,057 2,087
TOTAL 5,692 4,632 4,335
Significant accounting policies |

The accompanying notes from | 1o 2.46 form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration number: 101248 W/W-100022

< Minda = Sanjeev B F
Director CEQ & Managing Director
) ?( - (DIN 00054727) (DIN : 07252911)
% {

Shashank Agarwal Arun Wadhwa M_/ Prad?:ep Mann

For and on behalf of the Bogrd of Directors §f Mindd SAI Limited

Partner Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No.: 095109 Membership No.: 13371
Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram

Date : 21 May 2018 Date : 21 May 2018
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(Amoimnt in million)

Income

Note For the year ended For the year ended
- 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Revenue £ 101 operations 2.26 8,722 7,129
Other inceme 2.2 72 244
Total In¢ <me 8,794 7,373
Expenses
Cost of m 2tenals consumed 2.28 5,595 4,070
Changes i 1 itventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in- 2.29 (64) 2
progress
Excise duty en sales 245 809
Emplovee benefits expenses 2.30 1,232 956
Finance cests 2.31 83 104
Depreciat 2onand amortisation expense 2:1 180 148
Other expenses 2:32 890 718
Total exprenses 8,161 6,807
Profit beforctax 633 566
Current fax 2:17 201 160
Deferrec tag charge/(credit) 2.17 18 -10
Profit for the year 414 416
Other cormprehensive income
Item that will not be reclassified subsequent to profit or loss
Remeasurement of defined benefit liabilities - (6)
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - 2
Other cormprehensive income for the year, net of tax - -4
Total comiprehensive income for the year 414 412
Larnings per equity share of Rs.100 each 2.33
Earnings per share (Rs.) (Basic) 58.44 58.30
Earnings per share (Rs.) (Diluted) 58.44 58.30
Signilicant accounting policies 1

The accompanying notes from 1 to 2.46 form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For BS R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm registralion number: 10124

Chse

Shashank Agarwal
Partner
Membership No.: 095109

/W-100022

Place: Gurugram
Date : 21 May 2018

Ashok Minda
Director
(DIN 00054727)

Chief Financial Officer

Place: Gurugram
Date : 21 May 2018

For and on behalf of the

CEO & Managing Director
(DIN : 07252911)
d

Pradeep Mann
Company Secretary
Membership No.: 13371
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Stat U Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2018

AL Equi® Y Sare capital

{Amount in mitlion)

Particul =rs

Balance 45t 1 April 2016

708
Changes n “uity share capital during the year w
Balance 28 March 31,2017 708
Changes in quity share capital during the year =
Balance 451t March 31, 2018 708

B. Othes™ tquity

(Amount in million)

Reserves and surplus Items of Other
(2) Comprehensive Income (2)
— " — - Total
Capital reserve Securities Retained| Remeasurement of defined
premium earnings benefit obligations
reserve
Balance 281t 1 April 2010 15 66 1,061 3 1,142
Profit fo=~ theyear g . 416 E 116
Other co ®1pithensive income/(loss) N " " (4) 4
Total co sMprehensive income for the year = N 416 (4) 412
Amount =¥iten back on account of revaluation reserve < 2 3 - .
Balance 28t 31 March 2017 15 66 1,477 (4) 1,554
Balance 28t 1 April 2017 15 66 1,477 (4) 1,554
Profit fos~ theyear & f 414 . 414
Other co s nphensive income ki i 7 " "
Total co snprehensive income for the year L u 414 e 414
Amount witen back on account of revaluation reserve y & & [ =
Amount_traniferred to Employee stock compensation during the year 4 - - - 4
Dividend - - -106 - -106
Tax on d 3 vidnd 4 8 .22 & 22
Balance 283t 31 March 2018 19 66 1,763 (4) 1,844

Notes:

(1) Durira g the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company has paid dividend to its sharcholders, This has resulted in payment of Dividend Distribution Tax (DDT) to the taxation authorities. The
Compan believes that DDT represents additional payment to taxation authority on behalf of the shareholders, Hence DDT paid is charged to cquity.

(2) Refer note 2.15.1 for nature and purpose of other equity.

Uhe acceanpanying notes from 1 to 2.46 form an integral part of the financial statements
As per ot 1eport of even date attached

lor BS R&Co, LLP
Cheartere Accouniants
Fivm repisiration number: 101248 W/W-10

< '__’5\-.__/‘ .

Shashan k Agarwal
Partmer
Membership No.: 095109

Place: Guiugram
Date : 21 May 2018

y

Ashok Minda

Chedrman and Group CEQ

(DIN 00054727)

Place: Gurugram
Date :21 May 2018

Arun Wn(lphwl!

Chief Financial Officer

CIQO & Managmg Director
(DIN : 07252911)

eep IV
Company Secreiary

Membership No.: 13371
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Stater Mt of Cash Flow for the year ended 31 March 2018

P (Amount in million)
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
A, C A8 flow from operating activities
Prof# Uom operations before taxes 633 560
Adje=sinents for:
Dep=reaation and amortisation expense 180 148
Inte= et expense 83 104
Los=3/(profit) on sale / discard of property, plant and equipment(net) 3 (129)
Intes et income R |
Dy Vicend Income (38) (54)
Lia®illies / provision no longer required written back . (28) (48)
En= pliyees Stock Compensation Expense 4
Opesatng profit before working capital changes 837 582
Mov” €lient in working capital:
Ineres 456 in trade receivables (623) (120)
(Incre<ase)/ decrease in inventories (260) 17
(Incr<ise) / decrease in loan, other financial assets and other assets 39 (121)
(Dec reise) / increase in other financial liabilities and other liability 21 13
Increastin trade payables 551 151
Increase/ (decrease) in provision (10) 14
Casln generated from operations 555 536
Tax paid, net of refunds (205) (137)
Net e ash (used in)/ generated from operating activities (A) 350 399
B. Czsh flows from investing activities
Purcase of property,plant and equipment and intangibles assels (312) (200)
Sale ofproperty,plant and equipment 1 155
Diviciend recerved 38 54
Investment in subsidiaries (71 ()
= (1
Investment made in bank deposits (held for initial maturity of more than 3 months or more) (net) .
Interestreceived % (1)
Net cash (used in) / generated from investing activities (B) (344) [

C. Cash flows from financing activities

Paymient ol dividend (incl. of tax) (128) -
Repayment of long term borrowings (net) (196) (61)
Repayment of short term borrowings, (net) 400 (242)
Interest paid (83) (104)
Net cash (used in)/ generated from financing activities (©) : (7) (407)

Net decrease in eash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) (1) (2)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 2 4
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year 1 2
Significant accounting policies and note to accounts 1 to2.46

Notes to Cash Flow Statement:

I. The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ins-AS-7) "Statement of Cash Flow "
specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

2. Cash and cash equivalent consists of cash in hand and balances with banks. Refer note 2.9
3. Refernote 2.16 a for change in laibilites arising from financial activities

As per our report of even date attached

For BSR & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Minda SAT Limited
Chartered Accountants

Firm registration number: 101248W/W-100022

Ashok Minda ‘ Sanjedv Saxena
. Director CEOQ & Managing Director
= 7{ " . (DIN 00054727) (DIN : 529‘![\UV
Shashank Agarwal Arun Wﬂdhwwd Praticep Mann
Partner Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No.: 095109 Membership No.: 13371
Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram

Date : Il May 2018 Date :21 May 2018



TEI0L

14 [i]]

Il

I 1]

11

aremyyos renduio))

SI0Z YIBl €
JE s duEjEg

SI0T Y1ey 1€
e s® durjeg

1834 ap
1ej uonenadag

spudugsnipy
/suonapPg

L10Z 1My |
1E SE DuEejey

SI10T Y4Bl 1€
1€ SE 2JUE[EY

syuannsnipy
/suonapq

SuomIppy

L10Z Iy |
1€ s Ruejeg

}I0[q 55015

SIENORIE]

32019 BN uopeR21dap pazeNmNY
JuamdojaAap Japun s1asse Aqusuriug :(q) 17
1€ 6 * ¥ < or 2 £T Ll 180],
TS 7 T t C oF - 7 L1 AMeMIOS 12ndwo)
8T0T YL [€ S10T WEIN € sjwugsnipy 1wk oy L10Z 14dy 1 SI0T Y23l 1€ sywauysnipy suonip) LT0Z 1dY | ST
' SB duejeg JE sE durjeg /suonapg 1oy uonenaadaq | 1e se uejeg 3E sE 2due[eg /suonaRq HIPPY e se duejeg nInIed

RECICED

TONESHIOWE PAJE[NWNIdY

W20[q $5015)

s13s5% A|qIsueIu] Q) :(e) |7

[43

901 (118

gL

cl

901 01l

ssasgoad ur yaom rende)

FII'l

¥ 9L

(42}

£6C

M| oo

IPI‘L

1e30L

1=o],

e
'

o

Asaumyoet pue jueld
duipjing

JSEJ] U0 UIAIS §)assy

8T0T YHEW €
JE SE JduE[Ryg

BI10Z W2IEW 1€
e SE dUB[Eg

sjuauysnlpy aBak ay

/suonRpQ

10} uogenaidag

L10Z pdy |
JE SE due[eg

8107 UYdIEW 1€
1B SE 2duEjEyg

squauysnipy

suoni
jsuopapg HPey

L10Z Mudy |
JE SE DduERyg

¥20[q N

uopenaidap paEmMUNIY

H20[q 5015y

sIgmRIeg

FITT

-
o
=
—

8ET'l

oL

Wy s Oy

-+
v

—

[

Wy o 0

b o

011
oI

— el m

€O en —

o1
=+
[

o
k=l
<+
o

L¥

L1
LT
8T
08L
ric
6l

sjuawaA0IduIl pjoyasea]
SIIMRA
srempiey 1ndwoy)
awidinb2 20430
S2IMIXY pue amyuwm.j
AIaUIYOBUI PUB R[]
sguipjing

Pue] poyasea’]

PuB| ploysal
puE]

8107 YMEN I€
1€ SE 2uBjEg

8T0T YMEW 1€
18 se dueeg

sjuauysnlpy aeak ayy

/suonapq

10j uonendadag

L107 1ady |
JE s Dueeyg

8107 YEW 1€
¥ se 2duRjRyg

sjuaugsnlpy

i g suonIppY

L10Z 1dy |
e SE dueeyg

201q 19N

UOHEAIUIP PajE[NUNIDY

¥20[q wmo.nu

SIgnoRIEg

(UO1]j1R Ul RO

10T YdME[y [€ PIPUA IEIA Y] J0] SJUILIAIE]S [FIDUBUL} 3Y) 0] 5330

juawdinba pue jueld “Ajaadoad :1°g

(saadny ueIpu Ul SIE SJUNOWE {|V)

PRIy JVS Epully



11

11

T

(IR

1

aremjog 19ndwo)

LI0T WIEN 1€
JE SE dUEJEY

LI0T WEl I€
1€ S aduejeg

sjuaunsnipy
jsuondpQ

1B34 31y
a0} wonenaadag

910z 1Mdy |
JE SE duE|eqg

LIOT IEN I€
JE SE 3dueeg

sjuauysnipy
/suonRpq

suoyIppy

910z 1udy |
JE SE 150D pIawad(q

s1g[noRIEg

H201q 13N

uogenaadap pajEnWNDY

320]q §5045)

JUId0[9AaP 19 pUN S}assE J[qISUEIU] :(q) [T
4! § = € = L1 = = L1 [510L
zl < = < = L1 " = L1 BIEAOS JINguIo)
L10T YIERW 1€ L10T WIBIN 1€ sjuauysnlpy 1ealk aygy 910z 11dY | LI0T YIEN I€ syuamsnipy suonIppY 9107 [Mdy 1 sigmanIeg
JE Se ddue[eyg e S duEjeg jsuonRRq 10j uoyenaidaqg | 1e se aduepeg JE SE 2duRjRyg /suonapPq i JE SE 150D patmaa(g :
201q 19N U0 ESHI0WE POJE[MUNIDY 320[q S5045)
: ' ) s39SSE 2[qisuriu] RQ (¥) 1'7
8 - - - - 8 €T 1€ [4 [Ej0L
3 - 8 sz 1€ z ssaaSoad w1 yaom jenden)
666 rl £F1 - IFI'T LT €81 €86 [L20A N
€ - I = £ I - vl [ZIN
T 2 = = = T = = 2 AT2UIOEUI PUE JUE[]
- - I - = 11 - . I ssuipjing
ISEI| UO UIALS SJISSY
LIOTWHEN 1€ | LI0Z WIEN 1€ | susunsnlpy 1eak o SIZIdYT | LIEWREN I | ammnlby | L 910z AV 1 stgmopIEg
)e SE 2ouEeg 1® SE 2duE[Rg JsuonapQq J0j uonenaida | 1e se dueeyg Je se 2duejeg /suonapq o JE SE 1500 pawaa(] :
H20[q 1IN uonenaadap pajenWNY }20[q $5010)
966 Tr1 = [4d! * SEI'L 91 €81 IL6 1#10L
68 g - g - Lt - L oF SjuaLaAcIdul ployase]
[ 1 = L 2 £ ¥ E ¥ SIPOIYRA
71 S - 3 - L1 - 9 11 aqempiey Janduio))
(s < - S = Lz - £ vz juswidinba 32O
¥ £ = £ = LT » 1 9z SaImpxy pue aIimy
1LY 01l i 011 = 08L [4 £91 619 Alaupydeur pue jue|d
£0t 0l % 01 * ric 1 : cle ssurpimg
61 T = 1 * 0T 6 - 6C PUE] pjogasea]
& * = - . 2 - - £ Pue| pogaaag
pue]
LTOT WIBN 1€ LIOT IEN 1€ sywausnipy Jvad agy 9107 1MdV [ LI0T YIEN 1€ syawysnlpy suomIppy 9107 1dV | Sias
1B Se 2duejeyg 1E SE 2duejeyg /suondpRQ a0y uoneaadaqq | e se aduejeg e SE 2duEjRg /suonafpQ i JE ST )50 pawan( nanrd
T0NEa10ap PIIE|NWNIDY Y20[q S5015)

N20lq 19N

(uoina ut Junowy)

juswdinba pue juejd ‘Ajradoag 11z

($23dnyg uBIpU] Ul 1€ SJUNOWR {1)
S10T Y4B [€ PIPUI JBIA Y] 10) SJUIWIRE}S [BIDUBUL} Y] 0 SIION

PRI [VS BPUIA



Tl &l £6T°1

9 159 159
- 0L
S 095 095

paywi [ende) epUIA Ul yoea

001'SY Jo sareys aouaIaja1d o[qeuraapay dAneunD %1000 (000°0ZS :910Z 1MdV 1 “000°0ZS :L10T UY2IBA [£) 000°0ZS
saaeys ddudayaad ur Juam)SIAUY

PaNWIT SIUSUINYSU]

a5pLIau0IS BPUIA UT YoBa (] "SY JO sareys Amba (000°690°9 :910Z 14dV [ ‘000°690°9 :L10T Y2 MBI 1€) 000°690°C
2INJUIA JUlop

"PA)IWIT 2JBALIJ BIPU] SQe [ Ul Yoea O] 'Sy JO sareys Anba (IIN 9107 [HdVY [ ‘[IN :L10T UIBIN 1€) 788°97L

PYI

a1 [euonewIaju] AYSIWY Ul yoea | (S Jo sereys Amba (§€6'7€8°T 1 9102 1UAV | “8E6°YES°T (L10T Y2IBIN 1£) 8E€6°7E8°T
satuedwo)) A1eipisqng

(dn pred AJjny) 1uaw)saauy pajonbupn

(3502 3®) saieys A3nba ur jusw)saauy

9107 1dy | LIOT Y2aBp 1€ 8107 Y21BA 1€
B Sy jB sy JB Sy

sig[nonted

AO1Jj10E UT JUROW)

SJUSUIISIAU] - JUILIND-UON T'T

Q107 UdIBIAl T€ Papud 183K 91} 10] SJUIWI)LIS [BIDUBULJ 3Y) 0} SAJON
P2yl [VS BPUIA



aEinga SA1 Limited
N-ftes fo the financial stafements for the year ended 31 Mareh 2018

2.3+ Loans {unsecured, considersd good, unless otherwise stated)

N

(Amaount in nuition)

Particuiars

As at
31 March 2048

As at
31 Maurch 2017

As af
1 April 20146

N cnprent
Suurity deposits
S eurity deposits Lo related partics {refer to note 2.40)

2 4-Other financial asscis

16 15 14
16 9 9
26 24 23

(Amount in miftion)

Pauticutars

As at
3 March 2018

As i
31 Mareh 2017

As al
b April 2006

N ol current
Advances {0 employees

2.5+ Income tas assels

fAmount in mittion)

Particudars

As i
31 March 2018

As at
31 March 2017

As at
EApril 2016

Advance income tax [net of provision of Rs. 644 million

(3 I March 2017: Rs. 487 mifiion, T April 2016: Rs. 373 miltion)] 2 8 ¥
2 8 9
2.6~ Other non-current assets (unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)
} (Amount in million)
Parlicwiars As at As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 I April 2016
Clapital advances 14 2 4
IPsepaid expenses - - -
14 2 4
2.7 Inventorics
- (mownd in million)
Particulars As al As at As at
3T March 2008 31 March 2817 1 April 2416
Raw materials (including packing materials) 650 470 484
Add: Materials-in-transit 38 17 20
)3 487 504
Work-in-progress 151 108 107
Finished goods 73 49 77
Add: Goods-in-ransit 46 A4 24
119 98 101
Staores and spares 6 11 9
964 704 721
2.8 Trade receivables
{Amaount in mllion)
Particulars As at As at As ad
31 Marchr 2018 31 March 2017 I April 2016
(Unsecured and current)
Trade receivables 194t 1211 SRS
Receivables lrom related parties (refer note 2.40) 144 197 110
Less: Provision for expected credit loss (2) (2) (3)
2053 1406 E238




A A8 SAT Limited

N#F (o the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

2.4 Eash and cash cguivalents

felmovwnr i mitiionn)

P enlars

Asal
31 March 2018

As al
31 March 207

As al
1 Aprit 2016

CA% and cash equivalents

Cexsan hand

Bexlace with hank
SMdTent accounts

i)

§is ffmation pursuant to G.S.R. 308 ¢ ) dated 30 Mareh 2017 issued iy Ministry of corporate affairs:

(Ao i million)

P

Specificd Bank Other Tatal
Notes]  Denomination
MNotes

CiEomg eashin hand as on 8 November 2016 3 - 3
stted receipls - 2 2
Peraitted payinents - {1} {1}
Asnignt deposited 1 banks 3 " )
CEeing cash in hand as on 34 December 20146 - 1 1

Nexte For the purpose of s disclosure, the term 'Specified Bank Notes' shall have the same meaning provided in the notification of the Government of India,
in U Manistry of Finanee, Pepariment of Economic AfTaics number $.0. 3407 (8 3, dated the 8th November, 2016

2. HEO1ker bank hatances

felinenait inn miflion

Patticolars

As at
31 Mavch 2018

As at
31 Mareh 2017

As at
I April 2010

Balaee with hank
Drpasus due to matare within 12 month on the reporting date®

# heid as margin money with the banks

2,11~ Loans (unsecured, considered pood, unless otherwise stéated)

{Amowi ur initlion)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2018

As al
31 March 2017

Asal
1 April 2016

1odns to related parties (refer 1o note 2.40)
Sceunily deposits

8 1 I
[ i I
14 2 2

2.1L1 Disclosure persuant 1o seetion [86(4) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respeet of unsccured loans o subsidiary compaaies

_ 2054 detail of loans given fo relajed pariies

(Amonnt i mitlion)

Nante of Party

Nature of Purpose As a Asal As at
relationship of loan 31 March 2068 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
ii1 Labs India Private Limiled .

) . L . General
Outstanding as at the bepinning of vear N . - - -

. ’ : Subsitiary business
CGiven during the vear 8 - -

) . purpose
_Ouistanding as al the end ol year 8 b -

2.E2 - Other financial nssets

fAmeawnt m witlion)

Parlicatars

As al
31 March 2018

As at
3F March 2017

Asat

[ April 2016

w]nlca'csl receivable
Advances to employees
Reecivable from retated partics  refer to note 2.40)
Uintndfed revenoe
Otlhers

2.3 - Other current assets (unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)

4 2 3
40 145 4l
31 4 -

2 1 -
71 152 43

fAmerindt i mitlion;

Pasticulars

TBulances witls government authorities
Prepaid expenses

Advances to suppliers

{Other recoverable

As af Asar As ot
3 Marvch 2018 31 March 2007 Eapri 2016
37 42 42
19 16 13
3l 19 ¥
77 63

87
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Minda A~ Limited .
Notes to (F financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
215 Othes tquity
N {Amount in millionj
Particular As at As at

31 March 2018 31 Mareh 2017
Capital resSteve
Opening b#%mnce 15 5
Adjustmers Bon account of employees stock option 4 -
Closing ha Bace 19 5
Securities  embim reserve
Opening b 60 06
Closing b ¢ 66 66
Other cowz{rebensive income- Remeasurement of net defined benefit plans, net
Opening besince ) -
Add/ (lessy -Remeasurement of define benefit obligation ) - (4
Closing ba Raice 4 (4)
Retained Eaning
Opening bazinee 1,477 1,00}
Add: Net pafit for the year 414 416
Amount wrien back on account of revaluation reserve - -

1,891 1,477

Less: Divickmd paid on equity share® {100) -
Less: Divickad distribution iax (22) -
Closing balace 1,763 1477
Total Othereguity 1,844 1,554

* The compiny has paid Rs 15 per equity share which was declared on 18 August 2017 for the
financial yea 201617,

2.15.1 the Hoard of Directors, in their meeting held on 21 May 2018 recommended a dividend of Rs. 18 per equily share { face value of Rs, 100
per share), sibject to the approval of sharcholders at the ferthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company.

2.15.2 Natwee and purpose of other equity

Capital resove '

Accumulated capital surplus not available for distribution of dividend and expecled to remain invesied permancnity

Securities preminm reserve

The unutilized aceumulated excess of issue price over face value on issue of share. This reserve is utilized in accordance with the provisions of the
Act.

Remeasurenents of defined benefit obligation

Remeasurements of defined benrefit obligation comprises actuaral gains and Josses and losses and return on plan assets,
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Minda S A Limited

Notes to lhe financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

208 Provisions

{Amount in million)

Particuizsrs

As ai As at As at
. 31 March 2618 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Non- curtnt
Provisior: for employee benelits :
~Ciratui B 36 50 41
~Compansated absenee® 2] 18 14
#peler node 2.43 57 08 55

2,19 Other non-current liabilitics

(Amount in pillion)

Particulsirs

As at As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Deferred rwevenue/liabilities 7 10 13
Security deposit ] 2 2
8 12 [




Minda SAL #njted
Notes to the Thancial statements Tor fhe year eaded 3§ Mureh 2018

2.20 Bus'm\"’i“l:S

— felnrenrnre o1 mitlions}
Particnlars Foot note Asat As al As at
31 March 2018 3t March 2017 i April 26

Currens

Seeured
Cashcredit 0l working capital desunand loan

from banks 1 320 268 498
Ensecured

from banks 2 530 sy 393
frans other i e K 198 - .
1,048 648 594

Incone ¢

Lender Terns of repayment Amcunt Amouni Anrannt Beiails of seeuritics
einstanding auistanding outstanding
as ut 31 Mazch as af 31 Mavch asat i April
- 20818 2007 2006
Madimda Bank ®Repaeyment temy: Qo demand 108 83 134 |1 Fivst pard - passu charge on all existing and future carment assets

o late of interest : 0.50% above 6o MULR rate of the company

2 Second part - passy charpe on ol exastmg and fiture movalbile
fixed assets { exchuding assew exclusively charged o other fendas)
of the company

3. Second pire passu charge on ammovable praperties of the
company bemy laavd and buaaldog stnted o Chennar, Muambat and

Nouda,
U lank Lasuted a Repuyient teem: Go depmand 140 127 172 [ 1. Fiest part passu change on caren assets of the company both
¢ Rate ol imuiose. §.15 pove 1y MOLR e present and lature,
2 second pari passu chatye on all existing & Aiare fixed assets of

e company mebudimg cquitabile moitgage for companys plant at
Mumbar, Chennal and Nouda

Tudusawd Bank Lomated eRepayment e On dcm:{n:l - - 4

3

1 Taest parnt passu charge on the entue cuttent assets of the
e Raie ol mierest - L 80% above 1y MOLR rate company, presentand fitare

Z. Second pary passt chiage on e munevable esse af the
company sstuaied s Chomm, Muamba g Mol

tered Bank  FeRepayment (erm. On demand 66 58 103 H. First pan passu chispe on ali exsstong and Tutuie curent asseis of
e Hate ol ierast - One month MOLIG plus applicable margin the company

2. Second pan passt ¢

e o ali exsting and Tutures movable fixed
wssuls of the company

3. Second pari passu charge on wmovable fixed assets of the
company located at Mumbis, Notdi and Chenna

2 Kotk Malnedrn Bank o Repayable within 45 days 7 64 days from the date of] 350 211 213 41
Lanssied disbursement
e Raje of interest: $.40%

insecured

State Dok al Tachy oRepayable  within - 45

from  the <ate of 108 157 162 | Unseeured
dishursenient
® Rate of mterest: 0.30% above 3m MCLR rale

Iudusind Donk Lid sRepayable  within 90 days  from  (he  date  off 32 e 17 {Umccmed o
disbursemend
& Hate of interest: .75 %
3 [Baget Ve Lomted o Repiyment term On demand P98 - . - nsecured o

@ Rate of mterest © Lanked to prevailimg market mate




AL L RS

Noles (o the fi# 03] siatements for Lhe year ended 31 March 2018

221 Frade p #ibles

fAmouni in méflion)

Asat As ar Axat
31 Maweh 2018 31 Marcly 2007 I April 2016
; £ gy 801
Fradde pa 254 10 related poties (refor noe 2.40) 58 4G k]
1,579 1,033 581

* Details of dw <t micrn and small eaterpr

15 defined under the Micrn, Smali and Medium Enterprises Development Acl, 2086

Based on e 105 i mikon svittlalste, there are certan vendors who have conlirmed that they are covered under the Micro, Small and Medium Ererprises Development Act, 2000 INsclosures as required by section
e

Tl e Mic £ Small aad Mednim Eocerprises Pevelopment Act, 2006, are given below

{Antant i nailion)

S.No. Particuf an Aysont Asai Asal
s Bartieuk 31 Mareh 2018 31 March 2017 T April 2046

0 the pncs 3 amount snd the mterest doe thereon remanung
unpand iy supplier gx at the eid of year
P SR pak ameunt L 30
Intcig thercon | i i
36 52 37
i the amo W ol mterest pasd m erms of section 16, along
with the Sounts of the payment made o the suppliers
beyond t1Cappainted day
+ Byrtapat aenowu -
s Insts thereon - -
far b e vz ol witeresc due and payable for the year of
delay meTEmg pyment bich have been pad b 4 5 -
beyond e appomted dav durng the year) but withew -
adding e aerest speeified under this Act
4 3 z
v thewme i of interest acerted and remanmimg unpad, 4 4 3
+ 4 3
2.22 - MMher firsanciaf linbilities
. elmaiens i mitliont
Purticulars o Asat Asal As al
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2014

Current matnriesesaf freder note 2 161

“Perm o - t2%
Sinee leas bhgaticns
Inierest accrsed b ot due o borrewiins i ] £
Lmploves bened 1is payable a7 43 40
Creditors for capal iems 55 25 I8
her Pavsble 3 i i
235 195 oh
2.23 - Other cuvrent linhilitiey
. o {eAmannt 1 mithoiy
Partivaiars As at Asat As at
31 Murch 2018 31 Mawrch 2017 1 April 2016
Staturory dues payable 25 37 28
Advanees from cusiomer s 4 i
Advanee front custoner to related parties (refer note 2.40) - ] 3]
Dreivnred revenue abilines y 3 2
3t 42 kI
224 Provisions
{edmenient i willion,
Particuiars As ot As at Asax B
31 Marck 2018 31 March 2017 1 Aprit 2016
Current
Provision for employee benefits
Sty z 1 i
-Compensated absence” 1 i i
3 2 2
Freder note 243
2.25 Current tax lishilities
fAmonn in mitlion)
Particnlars As at As at Asat
31 Murch 2018 31 Mareh 2007 1 Aprii 2016
Provision for Laxation {netof advance income tax Rs. 179 million (31 March 2017 Rs- 125 million | April 2016: Ry, 29 37 I8
98 mithon)]

29 X7 i8




Miinda SAT Limited

N@les to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

2.26 Revenue from operations

—

(Amount in million)

PAatticulars

RIS

For the year ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2017

Sak ol products
“Manufactered poods
Crlher operating revenues
Royaiy
“lob work income
Sale of serap
Dihers
Crher operating revenuce
Revenue from operations

2.27 Other income

8.575 7,018
63 28
53 60
21 14
10 )

147 111

8,722 7,129

(Amount in mitlion)

Particadars

For the year ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2017

“Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment {(net)
Provisions/liabilities no longer required, written back
Rental income
ividend income
Miscellaneous income

2.2% Cost of materiais consumed

- 129
28 48
- 6
38 54
6 7
72 244

(Amount in million)

Particwlars

For the year ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2617

Raw materials consumed
Opening stock
Addd: Purchases during the year

Less: Closing stock

487 503
3796 4054
6283 4557

088 487
5595 4070




Minda SAI Limited

™otes {0 the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2818

2229 Changes in inventories of Finished Goods, Stock-in- trade and Work in Progress

e

(Amount in million

Frarticulars

For the year ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2017

#Finished goods and stock in trade
Chening stock

£ .55 Closing stock
%Aork in progress

Chening stock
Fuiss: Closing stock

236 Employee benelits expense

98 101
{19 98
1) 3
108 107
151 108
(43} {1
(64) 2

{Amount in million)

Farticulars

IFor the year ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2017

Sdaries, wages, bonus, gratuity and allowances
Centribution to provident fund and other funds
Exmployees Stock Compensation Expenses
Stff welfare

I,1H 872
34 29

4 -
83 55
1,232 956




Min#l SAI Limited

Notesto the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

2.31 finance cost

{Amount in million)

Partimlars

For the yvear ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2017

Inter€d expenses
Otherdorrawings costs

2.32 Other expenses

68 86
15 18
83 104

(Amount in mitlion)

Parcicwlars

For the yeayr ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2017

Tobwork charges
Consumption of stores and spare parts
Powerand el
Rent
Repairs and maintenance

Plantand machinery

Buildings

Otliers
Traveliing and conveyance
Legal and professional fees (refer note 2.4 1)
Comimunication
Management fees
[nsurance
Rates and taxes, excluding taxes on income
Loss on sale/discard of fixed assets (net)
Advertisement and business promotion
Printing and stationery
Freight and forwarding
Bank charges
Corporate social responsibility (refer to note 2,43}
Miscellancous

196 162
35 23
G5 54
91 83
38 24
12 11
33 25

128 92
32 26
12 i
85 62

8 6
O 5
3 -
6 24
7 4
84 o1
5 3
8 5
36 30
890 718

o~



Minda SAT Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March

2.33 Earnings per share

2018

Basic and diluted earnings per equity share have been computed by dividing net profit after tax by the

weighted average number of equity share outstanding for the year.

{(Amount in million)

Particulars Units | Year ended 31 | Year ended 31
Maych 2018 Mareh 2017

Net profit attributable to equity sharcholders Rs. 414 412

Computation of weighted average number of Equity share

of Rs. 100 each

- Number of share at the beginning of the Year No. 7,077,108 7,077,108

-Share issued during the year Na. -

Total number of equity share cutstanding as at the end of the No

year ) 7,077,108 7,077,108

Weighted average number of equity share used in computing No

basic and diluted earnings per share ' 7,077,108 7,077,108

Basic and diluted earning per equity share of face value of Rs. Rs. 58.44 58.30

100 each

¥ ,'N\.
_ AN
!’ =5\,
A L A
L (GRE fx:-a‘}-' |
Ve NGERA Fd




Minda SAT Limited

Notes fo the financial statements for the yvear ended 31 March 2018

2.34 Financial instruments — Fair values measurement
Financial instruments- by category and fair values hierarchy .
-The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities. including their levels in the

fair value hierarchy

i As om 31 March 2018

(Amount in million)

Particulars Carrying value Fair value measurement using
FVTPL | FVYOCI | Amortised Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
cost
Financial assets
Non-current
(i) Investments in preference shares 5 12 12 - - 12
(ii) Loans - - 26 26 s - ]
(1) Other financial assets - - I 1 - = -
Current
(1) Trade recervables - - 2,053 2,053 - - -
(i) Cash and cash equivalents - - 1 1 - - =
(ii1) Other bank balances - - 3 3 - - 5
(iv) Loans - - 14 14 - - -
(v) Other financial assets - - 73 77 - - 2
Total financial assets - - 2,187 2,187
Financial liabilities
Non-current )
Borrowings - - 106 106 - - 106
Current
(i) Borrowings - - 1,048 1,048 - 2 -
(i1) Trade pavables - - 1,579 1,579 - % -
(111) Other financial liabilities - - 106 106 - = -
(iv) Borrowings- current maturities - - 129 129 = & &
Total financial liabilities < - 2,968 2,968
ii As on 31 March 2017 (Amount in million)
Particulars Carrying value Fair value measurement using
FVTPL | FYOCI | Amortised Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
cost
Financial assets
Non-current
(i) Investments in preference shares - 11 11 - - 11
(i1) Loans - - 24 24 - - -
Current
(i) Trade receivables - - 1,406 1,406 - = -
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents - - 2 2 - - -
(iii) Other bank balances - - 3 3 - - =
(iv) Loans - - 2 2 - - -
(v) Other financial assets = - 152 152 - C: -
Total financial assets - - 1,600 1,600
Financial liabilities
Non-current
Borrowings - - 207 207 - - 207
Current
(1) Borrowings - - 648 648 - - -
(1i) Trade payables - - 1,033 1,033 = - =
(iit) Other financial liabilities - - 70 70 - = 2
(1v) Borrowings- current maturities - - 225 225 - - “
Total financial liabilities - - 2,183 2,183




Minda SAQ Limited
Notes 40 the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2018

il Asan [ April 2006 (Aot in mitlion)
Particalars Carrying vahre Fair value measurement using
FYTPL | FVOCT | Amortised Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
. cost
Ak assets
Non-currend
(1} Investiments in preference shares - 10 14 - - 10
ity baouns - - 23 23 - - -
Currest
(1} Trade recetvables - - 1238 1,238 - .- -
{iiy Cash and cash equivalems - - 4 4 - - -
(1) Other bank balances - - 3 3 - - -
{iv} Loans - - 2 A - - -
(v) Crher financial asseis ) - - 43 43 - - -
Total finaneial agsets - - 1,323 1,323
Fiancial linbilitics
Non-current
{1} Borrowings - - 292 292 - - 242
Current - - - - - - -
{1} Borrowings . - 390 890 - - -
(i1} Trade payables - - 881 881 - - -
(i1} Other financial Habilities B . 60 60 - -
(iv) Borrowings- current maturities - - 200 200 B - -
Total financial labilities - - 2,323 2,323

The managenment assessed that the fair values of short term financial assets and liabilities significantly approximate their carrying,
amounts larpely due o the short-term mawrities of these instraments, Accordingly, management has not disclosed Fair values for
ffnameial instraments such as trade receivables, frade payables, cash and cash equivalents, other current assets, intesest acerucd on
lixed deposits. other current Habilities cte.

The fair value of the linancial assets and labilities is included at (he amount al which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in & forced or liguidation sale, .

There have heen o transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Leve! 3 for the years ended March 31, 2018, March 31, 2017 and | April
26,

Valuation fechnigue nsed to determioe fair value

Speeific valuation tweehnigues used o value non current financial assets and liabilities Tor whom the fair valaes have been determined
based on present values and the appropriate discount rates of the Company al each balance sheet date. 'The discount rate is based on
{he weighted average cost of borrowings of the Company af each batance sheet date.

Valuation processes

The Company has an established control framework with respect 1o the measwrements of the fair values. This includes a valuation
team thai has overall responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value measuwrements and reporis o Senior Management. The
valuation 1eam regularly reviesws significant unebservablie inputs and valuation adjustments.

2,35 Financiad risk managementi
Uhe Company has exposure 1o the folowing visks arising from financial instruments:
- Credit risk: (see )
- Laquidity risk: ¢ see (i)
- darket viske fxec (1))
- Foreign currency risk:
- Interest rate risk:

Risk management firameworls

The Company's board of directors have averall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management
Iramework. The hoard of directors have authorised senior management to establish the processes, who ensures thai exceutive
management controis risks through the mechanism of properiy defined framework.

The Company's risk management policies arg established 1o identify and analyse the risks laced by the Company, to set appropriate
risks limits and controls, 10 menitor risks and adberence o limits. Risk management policies are reviewed regularly Lo reflect
changes i marker conditions and the Company's activities, The Company, through ifs training and management standards and
procedures. aims o maintaim a disciphned and constructive control environment m which all employees understand their roles and
obligations.




Minda SAE Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 3F March 2018

(i} Credit rislk

The maximwn exposure to eredit risks is represented by the total sirrying amount of these financial assetsin the Balance sheet:

(Apignnt i pritlion)

Particulirs Asat 31 Mareh Asat 31 March Asat 1 April
: 2018 2417 2014
Investments in preference shares 12 H 1
Trode receivabies 2053 1400 1.238
Citsh and cash equivatents 1 2 4
Othier bank balences 3 3 3
[Loans 40 26 25
Other Tinaneial assets 78 152 43
2,187 1,600 1,323

Creditrsk 1 the nsk of fnaneisl Joss 1o the Company i a customer or connterparty 1o a financial instrument (ails o meet its coniract

prencipaliy from the Company's receivables from customers, o

5.

ual obligations, and anses

Credit iisk on cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances are limited as the Company generally invest in deposits with banks with high credit ratinps
ks 3 i g

A8

uned by domestic credit rating agencies.

The maximum exposure 10 the credit risk at the reporting date is primarily Jrom trade receivables. Trade receivables are unsecured and are derved from
revenue carned from customers pramarily tocated in India. The Comgpany does monitor the economic environment in which i operates. The Company manages
its eredit visk throuph credie approvals, establishing credit Himits and continucusly momitorig eredit worthiness of customers to which the Company grants
oredit terms in the normal cowrse of business

Credit nisk has ahways been managed by the Company through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitermg the creditworthiness
of eustomers 1o which the Company grants eredit ferms in the normal course of business. Chy account of adoption ol Ind AS 109, the Company uses

expecied  credin toss (15€

L) made! o assesy the mmpairment loss or gain. The Company uses @ provision matrix 1o compuie he expected  credit Joss

allewance for wade recervables and unbilled vevenues. The provision matix tikes into account available externad and intemai credit risk faclors such as
Company's historical experience for customers. The reversal for lifetime expected credit loss on customer balances for the year ended March 31, 2018 was Rs -
anillion. The reversal for lifetime expected credit loss on customer balances for the yvear ended Mareh 31, 2017 was Ra. [ million

Maovement in the foss allowance in respecet of trade receivables:

Ao in mitlin)

B

Particalars For the vear Fer the vear
ended ended
31 March 20E8 | 31 March 2007
alance al the beginning of 2 3
Amount written oll - (1)
Balance i the end of the year 2 z

ay Expected credit toss for loans aod seeurity deposits

Asat 3 Muarch 2018

(Ao i midlioni

Particutars Assets proup {stimated pross|Bxpected Expocted creditiCarrying amaoumt
carrying  amount  al|probabifity of loss net of impairment
defilt default provision

Loss allowance measured at{Financial assets for which Security 16 - - 16

12 month expected credit teredit risk has notincreased  [deposits

foss sipnificantly since intial Loang 1o refated (24 - N 24

recoghition partics

Loss allowance measured at{Financial assets for which MA NA NA NA NA

lile-time expected credit credit risk has increased

foss signiftcantly and not credit -

impaired

Financial assets for which  [NA NA NA NA NA
credif risk has increased

signiftcantly and credit -

impatred

Asal 31 March 2037 (Amount in milflron}

sarbicularg ASSCLS proun timated gross|Expected Lixpeeted credit|Carrying  amount
carrying  amount o probability of Toss net of impairment
default defanh ProvISIon

Luss allowance measured at|Finaneial assets Tor which  |Security 16 - - 16

12 month expected credit feredit risk has not mereased  [deposits

foss signtficanily since intial Loans (o refated (10 - [t

recognition |arties

Loss allowance measwred at]Financial assets lor which NA NA NA NA MNA

lie-time expected credit credit risk has increased

loss significantly and not credn -

impaired
Financial assets for which NA NA NA NA NA

credit risk has inereased
sighificanily and credit -
impaired :




Asat 1 Aprii 2016

(Amaunt e auftion)

Particalary

toss

sy

ASSeLs proup Estimated gross|Expecied Vxpeoted credit|Carrying  amount
carving  amount  at|probability of loss net of impairment
defaull default [rrovision

s allowance measured o] Financial assets for which Security 15 - 15
12 month expected credit  |oredit risk has notmcrensed  [deposits
significantly since intial Loans 10 related 10 - - o
recopnition parges
alowance measured atFinancial assets for which  [NA NA NA WNA NA
hie-tme expected credis credit risk has increased
significantly and not credit -
impaired
Vinancial assels for which  [NA NA NA NA NA

credit pisk has increased
significantly and eredit -
unpaired

b) Expected eredit loss for trade receivables under simlified approach
The Company’'s exposure 1o credit visk for trade receivabies is as follows:

{Aman ur million)

Farticulars

As a1 31 March

As at 3§ March

Asat 1 April

2048 2017 26
Curient {(not past due)d 1851 1,237 1089
1t 30 davs past due 68 34 LT
3100 60 davs past due 36 22 21
01 10 90 days past due 23 27 16
Nore than 90 days past due 77 bz 46
Expected ereditlass ( Loss aowance provision} (V3] (2} (3)
Carrying amount of trade receivable { net of impairment} 2,053 1,400 1,138




Minda SAL Limited
Nates to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

(i) Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk s the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with is financial liabilities that
are settled by delivering cash or another financia! asset, The Company’s approach 1o managing liquidity is to cnsure, as far as possibie,
that it witi have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are fallen due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without
meurring unacceptable losses or risking damage 1o the Company’s reputation.

The Company beligves that its liquidity position, including Lotal cash and cash equivalent and ofher bank balances of Rs. 4 million as al
SiMarch 2018 (31 March 2017 Rs. § million, 1 April 2016 Rs. 7 million). anticipated lwture internally generated funds from operations,
and s fully available, revolving undrawn credit facility will enable it o meet its luture known obligations in the ordinary course of
business. However. il a Hquidity needs were o arise, the Company believes i has access o {inancing arrangements, value of
usenuinbered assets, which should enable it io meet its engoing capital, operating, and other liquidity requirements, The Company will
sontinue 1o consider various borrowing, or leasing options 1o maximize liquidity and supplement cash requirements as necessary.

Fhe Company's Hiquidity management process as monitored by management, inchudes the following;
- Day w day fimding, managed by monitoring, future cashk llows Lo easure that requircments ean be met.
- Maintaining rolling forccasts of the Company’s Heuidity position on the basis of expected cash flows,
- Muntaining diversificd credit lines,

L Financing arrangements

The company had access to the Iollowing undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period:

{Amount inmitfion}

Particelars As il As at As al

31 March 2018 131 March 2017 | 1 April 2016
I'rom banks 785 s07 4735
From others 2 B -

it Matorities of fivancial liabilities
The fellowing are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabifities a1 the reporting date. The amous arce gross’
(Amaunt i million)

As at 31 March 2018 Careying amounl Contractual cash flows
12 months or 1-5 years Meore than Total
less 3 years
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities-
Borrowings 106 - 1006 - 106
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities-
Borrewings- Current maturities 136 130 . - - 130
Borrowings- Short term 1048 1,048 - - 1,048
Trade payables 1,579 1.579 - - 1,579
Other financial Habilities 105 1S - - 103
Total - 2,968 2,802 1006 - 2,968
(Amaount in mitlion)
As at 31 Mareh 2017 Carrying amount Contraciual cash flows
12 months or 1-5 years More than Total
less 5 years
Non-current liabilities
Finaneial lsabilitics-
Borrowings 207 - 207 - 207
Current finhilities
Financial lHabilitics-
Borrowings- Current maturities 225 225 - - 225
Borrowings- Short term 648 648 - - 648
‘Trade payables 1,033 1,033 - - 1,033
Other nancial labilities 70 74 - - 70
Total 2,183 1,976 207 - 2,183
(Amouni in million)
As at TApril 2016 Carrying amount Conlraciual cash flows
12 months or i3 years More than Total
less S years
Non-current liabitities
Fiancia) liabilities-
Borrowings 200 - 2040 2 292
~ (Current labilities
Financiat Habilities-
| Berrowings- Current maturitics 200 200 - - 200
: Borrowings- Short term 200 B0 - - 890
o Trade payabies 881 881 - - 881
(ther financial liabilities 60 GO - - 6H)
Total 2,323 2,031 290 2 2,323




Mhoda SAT Limitet
Notes to the financial statements Tor the year ended 31 March 2018

(E11) Marler risk

Market risk 1 the risk that the futare cash flows of a linancial instrument will Nuctuate because of changes i market prices. Marker risk comprises two
types of risk: currency risk and interest rate nisk. The ebjective of market risk management 15 10 manage and contiol markel risk exposures within
aceeptable paramelers, while optimising the return.,

Currency risk

Currency risk s the risk that the futwre cash flows of a financial instrumeni will Nuctuate because of changes m foreign exchange raies. The Company is
exposed 1o the effects of luctuation m lie prevailing forergn currency exchange rates on its fnancial position and cash Nows. Exposure arises primarsfy
due 1o exchange rate Huctuitions between the funetionai currency and ather currencies from the Company's operaiing, investing and financing achvities.

Lxposure 1o curvency risk

The summary of quantitafive date about the Company's exposure (0 currency risk, as expressed inn Indian Ruopees, as at 31 March 2018, 31 March 2017
, .

and 1 Aprif 2016 are as below:

tAmort in million)

Particulars As at 31 Mavch 2008
ush EURO GBr CIE JPY
IFinsneial asseks
Irade receivables 3 40 -
40 - - -
Financial finhilities
Trade payables 37 49 - 3 40
57 49 - 3 40
(Amount in million)
Particulars As at 31 March 2017
USD EURO GRBP CHEF JPY
Financial assets
Trade recetvables 2 - : - -
Finaneiad liabilities
‘Frade pavables bt 14 - | i0
11 14 - 1 10
{Amount in mitlion)
Parficulars Asat 1 April 2016
USD EURO GBY CHF JryY
Financial assets
Trade recervables 2 2 - - -
2 2 - - =
Financu Habilities
Trade payables 31 20 - 9 15
31 20 - 9 13

Sensitivity analysis

A reasonably possible strengthening iweakening) of the Indian Rupee agamst below currencies as at 31 Marck 2018 {previous yvear ended as at 37 March
20017) would have affected the measurement of financial instruments denominated in (unctional currency and affected equity and profit or loss by the
amounts shown hefow. This analysis is performed on foreign currency denominated monetary financial assels and financial liabilities outstanding as at
the year end. This analysis
purchases.

assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant and ignores any impact of forceast sales and

{Amaou in million)
Particulars Profit or boss Equity, net of tax

Strengihening | Weakening | Strenpthening | Wealening

P depreciation /appreeiation w Indian Rupees against following foreign
For the year ended 31 March 2018

usnh i m -
BUR ) ) ;
Gl ; ; . .
CHY ; . .
Y . - -

I i - -

For the yewr ended 31 Marceh 2087
Lisiy

I:UR

ohre

(@R

RIENY

Uy United States Dollar, EUR: Turo, GBP: Great British Pound, CHF: Swiss Frane, JPY: Japanese Yen




Minda $41 Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 3§ March 2018

Gil) Marked risk
Inferest rafe risk

$ main

Inlerest rate visk 35 the nisk that the fisture cash Oows of a financial instrement will fluctoate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’
mierest rate risk arses fron long-ferm borrewings as well as current bortowings with variable rates, which expose the Company 1o cash fiow imerest rate risk.

Exposure to interest rafe risk
The Company’s inlerest rate risk arises majorly from the term loans and working capital lons from banks and other than banks carrying Noaiing rate of interes!.
These obbigations expeses the Company 1o cash flow inferest rate risk. The exposure of the Company’s borrowing te interest rate changes as yeported to the
managemest at the end of the reporting period are as [ollows:

fAmount in million)

Variable- vate instruments . As at As at As at

31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Non cutren borrowings 92 114 50
Current borrowings 1,048 648 £90
Current maturities of ren-current borrowings 50 72 48
Total 1,196 834 988

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments
A reasonably possibic change of 50 basis points (bps} in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased (decreased) equity and profit or loss by the
amounts shown below. This analysis assunies that all other variables, in particular foreign currency exchange rates, remain conslast.

{Amount in mitlion)

Parficulars Profit or toss Equity, net of fax

S0 bps increase 50 bps decrease 50 bps increase | 50 bps decrease
Enterest on term foans from banks
For the year ended 31 March 2018 (6) & (4 4q
For the vear ended 31 March 2017 (4) ] 4 &3] 3

2.36 'Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity share capital and al} other equity reserves of the company.
The primary abjective of the management of the Company’s capital siructure is 10 maintain an efficient mix ol debt and equity in order 10 achicve a
low cosl of capital, whilc taking inle account the desirability of retaining financial flexibility to pursue business opportunities and adeguate access
o liquidity w mitigate the elfect of unforeseen events on cash flows.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjusimenis to it i fight of changes in economic conditions.T'e maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Company may buy back shares from sharcholders, raise new debt or issue new shares.

The Company menitors capital on the basis of the debt o capital ratio, which is calculated as interest-bearing debts divided by total capital (equity
attributable to owners of the company plus interest-bearing debis).

tAmount in mitlion}

Particulars As at As at Asg at

31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Current borrowings 1,048 648 §90
Noen-current borrowings {including current maturitics) 235 432 492
Less @ Cash and cash equivalent 4 S 7
Adjusted net debt (A) ' L2719 1,075 1,375
Total equity (B) 2,552 2,202 1,850
Adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratio (A/B) 50,11 % 47.55% T4.35%




Minda A1 Limited
Ntes 10 the financial statenients for the year ended 31 March 2018

2.37 Capitaland other commitments

(ak Capital Commitments: Estimated amownt of contracls remaining to be executed ou capital account and not provided for (net of advances) Rs. 27 million (31

March 2017 Rs. 18 million, 1 April 2016 Rs. 2 mitlion)
(P Acconnting for leases
@) As a fessee

(i} Operating leases

(Amaunt in mitlion)

Particutars Year ended Vear ended Year ended
. 31 March 2018 31 March 2007 1 Aprii 2016
Lease rentals recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the year - 82 83
Total - 82 53
The future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases arc as follows: (Aot in million)
Particufars As at As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Mot fater than one year - 42 37
Later than one year but nol later than lNve years - 19 124
Later than {ive years - 12
Total - 153 173

b) As a lessor

The Company has given certain assets comprising tand and building and plant and raachinery on operating lease.

The lease is renewable for a further period on mutually agreed terms.

I'he lease arrangement s for a period of 3 years,

(Amount in miltion)

Particulars

For the year
ended
31 March 2018

For the year
ended
31 March 2017

For the year
ended
31 iviarch 2016

Rental income recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the year

- 4]

Total

- 6

The foure minimum fease incomes under non-cancelable operating leases are as {ollows:

{Amound in mitlion)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2018

AS af
31 March 2017

As af
1 April 2016

Not fater than one year - - 7
[ater than onc year bot not later than five vears - - 22
Totad - 20

2.38 Contingent liabilities

(Amount i mitlion)

Particalars

As af
31 March 2018

As at
31 March 2017

As at
Ist April 2016

Claims against the Company, dispated by the Company uot acknowledged as

debis

a} Ineome Tax - -

(1)} Sales Tax/ Value Added Tax g 5 I

o) Ixcise Dufy 3 2

d) Service Tax i t {
Total 6 9 4

2.3Y% Hedging and derivative instruments

Devivative contracts sutstanding as at balance sheet date

Forward contracts in respect of foreign currency culstanding as at 31 March 2018: Rs. Nil (31 March 2017 JPY 14 million equivalent 1o Rs.8 million 1. April
20162 1PV Nil equivalent 1o Rs. Nif) for al} year has been taken (o hedpe the foreipn currency exposure for amount payabie against the import of capital goods.




Minda SAI Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
2.40 Related party disclosures, as required by Ind AS 24, "Related party disclosures" are given below

A) Related parties and nature of related party relationship with whom transactions have taken place during the year

Description of relationship Name of the party

Key Managerial Personnel Mr. Sanjeev Saxena - Managing Director
Mr. Arun Wadhwa- Chief Financial Officer
Mr. Pardeep Mann- Company Sccretary (w.e.f. 01.05.2017)
Ms. Shifa Badri- Ex- Company Secretary (upto 14.09.2016)
Mr. Avinash parkash Gandhi-Independent Director
Mr. Ramesh Chandra Jain-Independent Director
Ms. Jyotika Kalra -Independent Director (upto 11.04.2017)
Mr. Parveen Gupta- Director (w.e.f. 05.02.2016)

Holding company and Ultimate Holding company Minda Corporation Limited ('MCL")
Subsidiary companies Almighty International Pte Ltd (‘'ATPL")

El Labs India Pvt. Ltd. (ELPL)
Step Subsidiaries P T Minda Automotive, Indonesia ('PTMALI')

P T Minda Automotive Trading ('PTMAT)
Minda Vietnam Automotive Company Limited (MVACL'")
Fellow Subsidiaries
Minda KTSN Plastic Solutions Gmbh & Co. KG, Germany (MKTSN")
Minda Management Services Limited (‘'MMSL")
Spark Minda Foundation ('SMI")
Joint Venture Minda Stoneridge Instruments Limited ('MSIL")
Minda Furkawa Electric Private Limited ('MFEPL")
Minda Vast Access Systems Private Limited (MVASPL") formerly known
as Minda Valeo Security Systems Pvt. Ltd.) (‘(MVSSPL)

Other entities over which key management personnel and their relatives Minda Capital Limited (MCAPL")

are able to exercise significant influence Tuff Engineering Private Limited ('TEPL')

Minda Silca Engineering Pvt. Limited (‘MSEL)
Note I During the current year, the Company had made an acquisition of 3,87,000 equity shares (representing 100% stake) of EI Labs India Pvt Ltd at a
consideration of Rs 37million. Pursuant to the acquisition, EI Labs India Pvt Ltd. has become a subsidiary of the Company.
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Minda SAL Limited
Notes to the: financial stafements for the year ended 31 March 2018

241 Awditors remuneration (excluding Service tax/ Goods and Serviees fax)

Legal and professional expense includes auditors’ remuneration as follows:
(Amount in million)

Par l!cuidl S For the year For the year
ended ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Statutory audii 3 3
Other Sevices | 1
Certification . .
Reimbursement ol expenses - -
Tataf . d 4

2.42 Lmsployee share -based payment plans

The mambers of the Holding Company Minda Corporation Limited (MCL) had approved ‘Employee Stock Option Scheme, 2017 through Postal Baflot on 10
Febroary 2017 The plan envisaged grant of stock oplions to eligible emplayees of MCL and i3 subsidiary al reserve price equal o the lalest avm]abk closing
price discounted by 30% or such other percentage as may be decided by the Nominafion and Remuneration Committee of the MCL.

Under the Phan, upto 53.41.840 stack options can be issued o eligible employees of the MCLL and its subsidiarics, whether working in India or out of hdia,
including any Director of the MCL and its subsidiarics, whether whole Ume or otherwise excluding the ndependent Diveetors, Options are Lo be granted at price
cqual to the fatest available closing price discounted by 50% or such other percentage 1s may be decided by the Nomiation and Remuneration Conmmitiee of the

"ML Under the Plan, each option, upon vesting, shall entitle the holder o acquire one equity share of Rs. 2 cach. The optiens granted will vest gradually over a
period net earlier than one year and nat Tater than five years from the date of grant of such Options. Vesting of Options is a function of achievement of
performance criteria or any other eriteria, as specified by the Committee of MCL and communicated in the grant leter,
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Sunmma ¥y of vesting and lock-in provisions are given below:

Vesting Schedule
Sr.No. | % of options scheduled to | Vesting date Lock-in period
- vesf
_ 20% O1-Apr-18 Nil
2 2% OL-Apr-19 Nil
______ Y 20% 01-Api-20 Nil
4 40% 01-Apr-21 Nil
Fhe mosement in the stoclk oplions under the Plan, during the year, is set ouf below: ‘
Payticubars For the year ended 31 Marveh 2018 For the yeay ended 31 Mareh 2017
Numi-ler of Weighied :‘lvcragc exercise Number of options Wcig!n{eil a'\'eragc
oplions price {Ks.) exercise price (Rs.)
Outstanding at the bepinning of the year 4,10.000 50 - .
Ciranted durmg the year - - 4,10,000 50
Forfen during the vear -
Ouistanding af the end of the year 4,10,000 50 410,000 30
Exercisable at the end of the year - - - -

Stock compensation expense in relation o stock options granted (w employees of the company is Rs. 4 million.

Stock compensation expense under the Fair Value Method has been determined based on Tair value of the stock options. The fair value of stock opiions was
determined using the Black Scholes option priciag model with (he following assumptions:

N For the year ended
Particutars 31 March 2017
Expected volatiby 47.58%
Risk lree interest rale 7.45%
Lxercise price (Rs) S0
Expected dividend yield 0.54%
Life of options (years) 4.07
Weiphted averape fair value of options as at the grant date {Rs.) 92,90

2.43 Duning the cusrem year, as required under scetion 135 of the Act, the Company has spent Rs. 8 million (31 March 2017: Rs. 5 million) towards the
corporate social responsibility (CSR activity). Relevant disclosures for amount 1o be spent vis a viz amount spent during the year are as below :

{Amount in million}

Particulars - for ihe year For the year
ended ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
A Gross amount requived 10 he spent by the Company 8 5

Amount spent during the year ended 31 March 2018 cAmount in million)

8. No. {Project/ Activity Paid in cash Yet to be paid Total

I Contribution te Company lormed under section 8 of Companies Act 8 - 8
2013 {or the purpose, including promoting and preventing Health care
& sanitaton

2 Promoting prevenung Heatth care & sanitation .- - -

Tatal [ . 4

Amount spent duriag, the year ended 31 March 2017 . P
(Amount in mittlion)

8. No. | Preject/ Activily Paid in cash Yet to be paid Total

j Contribution 0 Company formed under section 8 of Companies Act 5 - 5
2013 for the purpose, including promoling and preventing Health care
& sanitation

2 Promoting preventing Health care & sanitation - Co -

Total 5 - 5




244 As per Ind-AS 108, Operating segments have been defined based on the regular review by the Company's Chief Operating
Decision Maker to assess the performance of each segment and to make decision about allocation of resources. The Company
business activities fall within single primary business segment, viz, manufacturing of Automobile Components and Parts thereof,
Accordingly, disclosures under ind AS 108, Operating Segments are not required to be made.

Detall of revenue from operation at year end, property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are as follows:

(Amount in million)
Location For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Revenue from operation

Domaestic 7,783 7.004
Overseas
Asia (excluding domestic) 307 105
Europe 632 20
Total 8,722 7,129

Carrying amount of assets

Location As at As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016

Domeslic 5,649 4,630 4,331

Overseas

Asia (excluding domestic} 3 2 2

Europe 40 - 2

Total 5,692 4,632 4,335

Addition of Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Domestic
- Property, plant and equipment 295 183
- Intangible fixed assets 24 11
319 194

{verseas

- Property, plant and eguipment - -

- Intangible fixed assets - L -

Segment revenue in the geographical segments considered for disclosure is as follows:-

Revenue within India { Domestic) include sale to customers located within India, and

Revenue outside India (Overseas) include sale of products manufactured in india to customers located outside india

Segment assets in the geographical segments considered for disclosure represents assets focate outside India and sundry debtor
batances against export sales from India operations
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245 EmdMoyee henefits
aj Defined cantribution phins

The Company’s employee provident fund and Bmploye

axpense For te vear and shown under Employee benefits expense in note 2,30,

state insurance schemes are delined contribution plans, The following amounts have been recognised as

{Amiount in million)

Particulizrs

For the year
endled 31 Murch

For the year
ended 31 March

N n_ 2018 2017

Contribution wwards
~Providem tund 24 25
-Rmploye St insumnee _ b 3
35 28

b Befined benefit plans grafoity

Inaccordance with the Payment ol Gratuity Act, 1972, the Company provides for gratwty as a defined benetit plan The Company operales graiuty plan wherem evey
amployes s entitled (o the benefit equitvalent to 15 days salary (includes dearness allowance ) last drawn for cach cempleted year of service. The same is payable on
lenminadicon of serviee, or retiremens, or death whichever is cartier. The benelits vest afier five years of continuous service. The liability of gratuity plan i provided
based on aciuarial valuation as at the end of cach financial year after considering the amount lying in planed assots maintained with Life Insurance Corporation of India

(Amount i million)

Pioriculars

For the year
ended 31 March

For the yoar
cnded 31 Marceh

2018 2015
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation is as follows:
Present value of defined benelit ebligation at the beginning of the year 02 47
Interest cost 3 4
Current service cost 9 8
Past service cost -
Benelits paid (&3] (4)
Acluarial Toss / {gan) on obligation - 7
Present value of defined benelit ebligation at the end of the year 73 62
Changes i (he present value of the plan asset is as Tollows:
IFair value of plan asset at the beginning ol the year 10 §
Return on plan asser i )
Contrhutions 24 5
Benefits paid (1} {13
FFund management charge .
Actuarsl {gam) 7 loss on obligaiton | ]
FFare vatue of plan asset at the end of the year 35 10
Reeancitiation of the present value of defined bencefit obligation and the fair value of
the plan assets:
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end ol the year 7 0632
Fair vadue of plan asset at the end of the year 35 10
Net Habiity as ot the close of the year (38) (52}
Expenses recognized in the statement of profit and loss;
Curreni service cost ) H
Past service cost - -
Tnterest cost 3 4
fxpected return on plan assets {H -
Net actudriad loss / {(pain) (1) 4]
Expenses recogazed m the statement of profit and loss: 12 18

Amonnt recognized in current year and previcus fonr years:

(Amound in milfion)

Pariiculars' As a1 31 Marchj As at 31 March As at 31 March As af 31 March As at 31 March

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
Present value ol obligation as on the end of year 73 62 47 42 32
Fair vilue of plan assets at the end of the year 35 ] 5 3 5
Surplus/ { Deticit) {38) (52) (42) 37 27
Experience adjustment on plan Habilities - i
(loss)eain 2 &) ° ! )
Experience adpustment on plan assets (loss)pain |

1 - - -
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P-ullcul !Is

As at 31 March

As wl 3T March

Asat 1 April

Maortattiy
Employee attrition rate
Ut 30 vears of ape

100% of JALM 2006-08

160% of TALM 2006-08

2018 2087 2016
Actuarial: .mmupl:um
Phscoust tate TPV 7.54% 8.00%
Ixpected rate of teturn on plan agscis 7.7 721% §.00%
LExpected salary merease rales 7.00% 7.00% 7.00%

100% of TALM 2006-08

3.00% 3.00% 3.00%
-From 31 years of age to 44 years of age 2.00% 2.00% 2.00%
i years of age 1.00% £00% ) PO

Note;

The estimates of future silary increases considered t the actuzrial vatuation take inte account inflation, sensorily, promotion and other retevant factors such as supply

and demand in the employment market

The discoum e fx estimated based on the prevailing marker vields of Indian Government securitics as a1 the balance sheet date for the estimated e of the

obdation

Sensitivity wnalysis:

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date 1o one of the relevant sctuarial assumptions, holding other .lﬁsumplmn\ constant, would have alfected the defined

benelis aobligation by the amounis shown bejow.,

fAmount in million)

Tra rlicalirs

Far the year ended 31 March 2018

FFor the year ended 30 March 2007

- increase Decrease Inerease Decrease
Discount rate (- / -+ 1% % 10 (4) 5
Iurare salary prowdh -7+ 1%) G (9) 5 (4)
Rate of retanm on plan assets (12) 9 (6} 4
Change in altsition rate (1%) 1 (1 -

Although the analysis does not take into aecount of the [l distribution of cash flows expected under the pian, it docs provide an approximation ol the sensitivity of the

assumpt iong shown

Matlurily profike:

The table Below shows U expected cash Now profie of the benefits Lo be paid o the current membership of the plan based on pasi service

ol the emplovees as an the valuation date:

(Znount in mitlion)

Ax at As al
31 March 20138 31 March 2017

I vem - i H
2005 veurs 7 6
H 1o 40 yeurs 8
Mure than H) vears 33 47

¢} Other long term Benefit - Compensated absences

The Conypany operates compensated absences plan, where in every employes is entitled fo the benelit as per the policy of the Company in tus regard. The salary for
calealation of earned leave is last drawn salary. The same is payable during the service, carly retirement, withdrawal of scheme, resignation by employee and upon death

of employee.

An actuarial valuation of Compensated absence has been carried out by an independent actuary on the basis of the following assumptions:

,\ssum;:liuns
|

As at 31 March

As a1 31 March 2017

As at 1 April

2018 2016
Discount rate T.71% 7.54% §.00%
Ixpected salary increase rates 7.00% 7.00% 7.00%

Mortality 100% of 1ALM 2006-08  100% of IALM 20006-08  [00% of JALM 2006-08
Employee athition rate ‘
-Lp o 30 vears el age 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%
-From 31 years of age 0 44 years of age 2.00% 2.00% 2.00%
-Above 44 vears ol age 1.00% 1.00% 1.00%

The other fong- term benelit of compensated absence in respect of empioyees of the Company as at 31 March 2018 amounts to Rs. 23 million (3! March 2017 s 19
million) and the expense recognised in the stalement of profit and loss during the year lor the same amounts to Rs. 9 million (31 March 2017 Ry 9 million) {Gross

payment of ks 5 midlion (31 March 2017 Rs 5 miflion)]

Sensitivity analysis:

Reasorably possible changes at the reporting daie to one of the relevant acivarial assumptions, halding other assumptions constant, woukl have affected the defined

benefit obitgation by the amounts shown below.

{Amount in million)

Particulars For the year ended 31 March 2018 Eoy the year ended 31 March 2017
Increase Decrease Increase Deerease

Discount rate { -~/ + 1 %) (3) 4 (13 i

Piture spbary growth { -/ 19) 4 3 1 {H

Although the analysis does not take fnte account of the Tull distribulion of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the sengitivity of the

ElSSllT}]|)li(l[1$ shown,
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Maturity profile:

The table below shows the expected cash flow profile of the benefits to be paid to the current membership of the plan based on past service of the employees as at the
valuation date:

(Amount in million)

As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
1 year 1 1
2 to 5 years C 3 2
610 10 years 3 3
More than 10 years 16. 13

Although the analysis does not take into account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the
assumptions shown,
d) Risk Exposure
Through its defined benefit plans, the Company 1s exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed below:
i) Asset volatility
The plan habilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to bond yields; if plan assets underperform this yield, this will create a deficit. Most of the
plan asset investments are in fixed income securities with high grades and in government securities. These are subject to interest rate risk and the fund manages
interest rate risk with derivatives to minimize risk to an acceptable level. A portion of the funds are invested i equity securities and in alternative investments

which have low correlation with equity securities. The equity securities are expected Lo earn a return in excess of the discount rate and contribute to the plan deficit.
The Company intends to mamtain the above investment mix in the continuing years

ii) Changes in discount rate

A deerease in discount rate will increase plan liabilities, although this will be partially offset by an increase in the value of the plan's bond heldings.

iii) Inflation risks
In the plans, the payment are not linked to the inflation so this is a less material risk
iv) Life expectancy

The plan obligations are to provide benefits for the life of the member, so increases in life expectancy will result in an increase in the plans' liabilities. This is
particularly significant where inflationary increases result in higher sensitivity to changes in life expectancy.

The Company ensures that the investment positions are managed within an asset- liability matching (ALM) framework that has been developed to achieve long term
mvestments that are in line with the obligations under the employee benefit plans. Within this framework, the Company's ALM objective 1s to match assets 1o the
obligations by mvesting in long-term fixed interest securities with maturities that match the benefit payments as they fall due and in the appropriate currency.

The Company actively monitors how the duration and the expected yield of the investments are matching the expected cash outflows arising from the employee
benelit obligations. The Company has not changed the processes used to manage its risks from previous periods. The Company uses derivatives to manage some of
its risk. Investments are well diversified, such that the failure of any single investment would not have a material impact on the overall level of assets.
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2.46 Explianation of vansition 1o Ind AS

As mentioned in nete 1 (4), these financial staiements for the year ended 31 March 2018, are the first financial statements of the Company prepared in
aceordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) notified under (he Campanies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2013, For periods up
o and including the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company prepared its financial statemenis in accordance with “previous GAAP™, including
accounting standards notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 {as amended).

Accordingly. the Company has prepared finaneial statements which comply with Ind-AS applicable for periods ended on or alter 31 March 2018,
wgether with the comparative peciod data as at and for the year ended 31 March 2017, as described in the summary of significant accounting policies. In
preparing these (inaneial statements, the Company’s opening balance sheet was prepared as at 1 April 2016, the Company’s daie of transition (o Ind-AS.
This sere exptains (he prineipal adjustments made by the Company in restating ifs previous GAAP financia) statements, including the balanee sheet ug
at 1 April 2616 and the financial statenients as a1 and for the year ended 31 March 2017.

According w0 Ind A8 101, the {irst Ind AS financial statements must use recognition and measurement principles that arc based on standards and
interpretations that are effective for the financial year ended 31 Mareh 2018, These accounting principles and measurement prieiples must be applicd
retrospectively 1o the date of transition 1w Ind AS and for all periods presested within the fivst Ind AS financial statements. Any resulting differences
between carrying amounts of assets and }iabilities according to Ind AS 101 as of 1 April 2016 cempared witl those presented in the previous GAAP
Batarce Sheet as of 31 Mareh 2016, were recognised in equity within the Ind AS Balance Sheet.

- Exemptions and exceptions availed

Setout below are the applicable Ind AS 101 optional exemptions and mandatory exceptions appiied in the transition from previous GAAP 10 Ind AS.

Transition clections

Bxplanation of the Ind AS 101 exceptions and exemptions to the ful} reirespective application of Ind AS applied by the Company.

fz the Ind AS apening Balance Sheet as at 1 April 2016, the carrying amounts of assets and labilities from the previous GAATP as at 31 March 2016 are
generatly recognized and measured according to Ind AS in effect for the financial year ended as on 31 March 2018, Uor cerain individual cascs,
however, Ind AS 101 provides for aptional exemplions to the general principles of retrospective application of Ind AS. The Company has made use of
the following exemptions in preparing its Ind AS opeping Balance Sheet.

[nd AS optional exenspitons:
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Ind AS 101 permits a firsi-time adopter o elect o continue with the carrying value for all of its properly, plant and equipment and intangible assets as
recoguised in the financial statements as at the date of fransition o Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as ils deemed cost as at the
date of transition . This exemption can also be used for intangible assets covered by Ind AS 38 Intangibie Assets.

Investment in subsidiavies/joint venture

investment n subsidiaries/joint venture in the financial stalements are carried at cost which is simifar 10 accounting in previous GAAP. The Company
also had option to account for investment in subsidiaries/joint venture at fair value, The Company has opted 1o carry its investment as subsidiary al it
cosl.

Ind AS mandatory exceptions:

ILstimates

An entity’s estimates in accordance with lud ASs atl the date of transition 10 Ind AS shall be consistent with estimates made Tor the same date in
accordance with previous GAAP (after adjustments o reflect any difference in accounting policies), unless there is objective evidence that those
estimales were in crror. however the estimates should be adjusted w reflect any difference in accounting policies.

Ind AS estimates as al § April 2016 are consistent with the estimates as at ihe same date made in conformity with previous GAAP. The Company has
made estimates for following items in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition as these were not required under previous GAAL:

a) Determination of the discounied value for financial instruments carried al amortised cost

b) mpairment of financial assets based on expected credit loss model

Classification and measurement of financial assets

Ind AS 101 requires an entity to assess classification and measurement of financial assets on the basis of the Tacts and circumstances that exiss at the
date of transition 1o Ind A8, Further the standard permits measurement of financial assets accounted ag nmortiesed cost based on fact and circumstances
exists al the date ol transition if retrospective application is impracticable. .

Accordingly. the Company has determined the classification of financial assets based on facts and circumstances that exist on the date of transition.
Measurement of the {inancial assels accounted at amortised cost has been done restrospectively except where the same s impracticable,
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B- Reconciliations between previous GAAP and Ind AS:
Ind AS 101 requires an entity to reconcile equity, total comprehensive income and cash flows for prior periods. The
fallowing tables represent the reconciliations from previous GAAF (o Ind AS.

(i) Reconciliation of equity as at T April 2016 {Amount in miltion)
Particulars Foot note Amount as per Effects of Amount as per
reference previous GAAP® transition to Ind fad AS
AS
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment Phk - 983
Capital work-in progress 2 - 2
Other Intangible assets 17 - vr
Iinancial assels
1. investments 1 1,263 42) 1,221
il. [Loans 2 30 {7 23
Income tax assets 9 . 9
Other non-current assets 5 5 h 4
2,311 (50) 2,206}
Current assets
Inventories 3 717 4 721
Financial assets
i Trade receivables 1,238 - 1.238
i Casland cash equivalents 4 - 4
i, Other bank balanees 3 - 3
iv.  Loans 2 - 2
v, (ther financial assels 43 - 43
Other current assets 2,4 37 & 63
2,064 114 2,074
TOTAL 4,375 (40 4,335
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equily share capital 708 - 708
Cther equity 1,190 48) 1,142
1,898 {48) 1,850
LIABILITIES

Non-Current Lisbilities
Financial Liabilities

Borrowings 7 299 N 292
Deferred tax labilitics (Net) 6 35 | 36
Provigions 53 - 55
Other non-current liabilities 7 3 12 15

392 6 398

Current labilitics
Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings 890 - 800
(i) Trade payables 881 - 881
(ii1) Other financial liabilities 260 - 260
Other current Habilities 7 34 2 36
Provisions 2 - 2
Current tax liabilities 18 Co- I8
2,085 2 2,087

TOTAL 4,375 (43 4,335

*Lhe previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to conform o Ind AS presentation requivements for the purposes of

this nole. ‘
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(i) Reeonciliation of equity as at 31 March 2017

(Amount in million)

Foot note

Amount as per

Effects of

Amount as per

reference  previous GAAPY*  transition o Ind AS
Ind AS
ASSETS
Non-currend assets
Property, plant and equipment 999 999
Capital work-in progress 8 8
Other intangible assets 12 - 12
Intangible assets inder development 11 11
Financial assets
i. Investments 1,263 4n 1,222
i Loans 30 (6) 24
Income tax asseis 8 - 8
Other non-current assets 2 - 2
2.333 (47) 2,286
Current assets
Inventories 3 767 (3) 704
Financial assets
i Trade receivables 1,406 - 1,400
ii.  Cash and cash equivalents 2 - 2
iii.  Other bank balances 3 - 3
iv. Loans 2 - 2
v.  Other financial assets 152 - 152
Other current assets 2,4 72 5 77
2,344 2 2,346
TOTAL 4,677 (45) 4,632
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 708 - 708
Other equity 1,606 {32) 1,554
2,314 (52) 2,262
LIBILITIES
Non-Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 7 211 {4) 207
Deferred tax liabilities (Nen) 6 25 1 20
Provisions 68 - 68
Other nan-current fabilities 7 5 7 12
309 4 313
Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 648 - 648
(it) Trade payables 1,033 - 1,033
(i) Other financial liabilities 295 - 295
Other current liabilities 7 39 3 42
Provisions 2 - 2
Current 1ax liabilities 37 - 37
2,054 3 2,057
TOTAL 4,677 (45) 4,632

*The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to conform to Ind AS presentation requirements for the

purposes of this note,
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(iti} Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the year ended 3F March 2017
{Amount in million)

Foot note  Amount as per Lffects of Amount as per
reference  previous GAAP*  transition to Ind AS
Ind AS
Revenue from operations 7,129 - 7,129
Other income 1,2,7 239 5 244
Total Income 7,368 5 7,373
Expenses .
Cost of materials consumed 4,070 - 4,070
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock- 3 ) 6 5
in-trade and work-in-progress ‘
Excise duty on sales 8 809 - 809
Employee benefit expenses 4,9 959 (3) 956
Finance costs 7 101 3 104
Depreciation and amortisation expense 148 - 148
Other expenses 2 718 - 718
Total expenses 6,801 O 6,807
Profit before tax 567 (D 566
Tax expenses
Current tax fa0 160
Deferred tax charge/{credit) (10} - (10
Profit for the year 417 (1) 416
Other comprehensive income -
Items that will not be reclassified subsquent
to profit and loss
9 {0) {6)
Remeasurements of defined benefit liabilities -
Income tax relating to items that will not be 6 2 2
reclassified to profit or loss -
Total other comprehensive income/ 4) 4)
(expense) for the year, net of taxes i
Total comprehensive income for the year 417 (5) 412

*The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to conform {o Ind AS presentation requirements for the purposes
of this note.
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B {iv) Beconciliation of toral equity as at 31 March 2017 and 1 April 2016

(Amouns in million)

Particulars

As at 31 March 2017

As at 1 Aprit 2016

Taotad equity (shaveholder’s funds) as per previous GAAP

2,314 1.898
Adjustments:
Adjustiment for discounting of long term financial assets and Habilities, net (0) (£
Tmpact of fair valuation of invesiments (42) 42)
Adjustment in method of inventory ( Fifo 1o Welghied average) (3) 4
Preferred tax adjustment (1) (2
Total adjusiments (52) (48)
Totaf equity (shaveholder’s Tunds) as per Ind AS 2,262 1,830

B (v} bupact of Ind AS adoption on the statements of casly flows for the year ended 31 March 2017

There were no material differences between the statement of cash flows presented under Ind AS and the Previous GAALP except due to various re-
classiflcation adjustments recorded under ind AS and difference in the definition of cash and cash equivalenis under these iwo GAAPs.

R
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C.
i

Noro fo the reconcilintions:
Tow' Giment in prefrence shares

The Pompany fas investments in cumulative redeemable prefesence sharves @ 0.001% {(below market rate) The same were recorded at their ransaction value
cost inder previous GAAP. under Ind AS, such investments are recognised at antorlised cost. Difference between the amortised cost and earrving value of
the ivestments has been recognised in retained eamings. Consequent to this change the amount of investments as on 31 March 2017 has decreased by Rs.di
mittia (1 April 2016; Ry.42 million). The total equity decreased by Rs.42 mitlion as at LApril 2016. The accredion of investment happens by recognition of
a nOonal inferest income in Statement of Profit and Loss al effective interest rate. The profit for the year ended 31 Marels 2017 increased by Rs 1 million ¢
due b recognition of inferest income).

Secwrify deposils

Unda the previous GAADP, interest {ree seourity deposits {that are refundable in cash on completion of the term) are yecorded at their transaction value,
Undu Ind AS, such financial assets are recognised al amortised cost. Difference between the amortised cost and carrying value of the security deposil has
beenrecognised as deffered rent. Consequent o this change the amount of security deposit as on 31 March 2017 has decreased by Rs, & miliion (I April
201 6: Rs.7 million) with a creation of deferred rent (included i other non-current and current assets) of Rs. 5 million  (1April 2616: Rs.7 million). The
sotal equity decreased by Rs. 1 million as at § April 2016, The unwinding of security deposit happens by recognition of 2 notional interest income in
Statement of Profit and Loss at effective inferest rate. The deferred reat gets amortised on a straight line basis over the term of the sceurity deposits. The
profiand loss equity {or the year ended 31 March 2017 decreased by Rs. ' million due te amertisation of deferred rent and increase in notional infeses(
incote of Rs. 1 million recognised on security deposits  ( included in other income).

Inventery valuations
Unde previous GAAP, the Company was following FIFO method of inventory valuations, however under Ind AS, the Company is accounting for inventory
valuaion through consistant policy ol weighted average.

interest free Loans to employees

Unde Previous GAAP, employee loans to be settled in cash are recorded at cost. However, under Ind AS, certain assets covered under Ind AS 32 meel the
definition of financial assets which include employee foans are classified at amortized cost, further these financial assets have been given at nil interest rate |,
thercfore, these have been discounted to present value. Accordingly, loan 10 employees is accounted at amortised cost using prevalent market rate of interest
by applying effective inlerest rate method.

Consequent to, this change, the amount of advance 1o employees as on 31 March 2017 has decreased by Rs. ' - ' million {1 April 2G16: Rs, ' - million) with
a credtion of deferred employee benefit expense (included in other non-current and current assets) of Rs. - milfion (I April 2016:  Rs. ' - ' million) The fotal
equity increased by Rs.' - "mifiion as at 1 April 2016. The deferred employee benefit expense gets amorlised on 4 straight line basis over the term of the loan
to emmployees. Tlhie profit and total equity for the year ended March 31, 2017 increased by Rs.” - ' millien due to amortisation of employee benefit expense by
Rs." -" mithion and increase in notjonal interest income of Rs. - million recognised on loan 1o employees (included in other income).

Lease cqualisation reserve

Under previcus GAAP, lease rentals on operating lease, were required to be recognised as expense on straight line basis over (he lease term by recopnising
corresponding lease equafisation reserve. However, under Ind AS, there is no such requirement unless under specific circumstances speeified in the Ind AS.
Accordingly, other non current assets reduced as al 31 March 2017: Rs. Nil million () April 2016: Rs. 1 mition) with cerresponding adjustment o retained
earnings.

Defesred fax

Previous GAAP requires deferred tax accounting using the income statement approach, which focuses on differences between taxable profits and accounting
profits for the period. Ind AS 12 requires entities to account for deferred taxes using the balance sheet approach, which focuses on temporary differences
between the carrying amount of an assel or ligbility in the balance sheet and its tax base.

In addition, the various transitional adjustments lead to temporary differences. Defesved tax adjustments are recognised in correlation (o the underlying
transaction either in reserve and surplus or a separate component of eqaity. On the date of fransition {i.c I April 2016}, the net impact on deferred tax
Habifities {s of Rs. 1 Milljon (31 March 2017: Rs. | million). The profit and total equity for the year ended 31 March 2017 increased by Rs.' - million due
1o differences i taxable profits and accounting profis,

Government granis

Ind AS 109 requires government grants in the foms of sales tax deferment is o be accounled at amrotised cost using effective interest rate method. The
excess is recognised in the profit or loss over the lenure of the borrowing as parl of the interest expense by applying the effective interest rate method. Under
the previous GAAP, these borrowings were presented in Balance Sheet on actual grant amount. Accordingly, borrowing as at 31 March 2017 have been
reduced by Rs, 4 million { I April: 2016 Rs.7 million) and deferred liabilities have been increased as at 31 March 2017 (included in other non-current and
current liabitities) of' Rs. 10 million (1 April 2016: Rs.14 million).

Under the previous GAAP, government grants that were given with reference (o total capital outiay were credifed to capital reserve and treated as part of
shareholders funds, Under ind AS, Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plani and equipment shall be presented in the balance sheet by
selting up the grant as deferred incorme and are credited to profit or loss on a straight- ine basis over the expected lives of the related assets and presented
within other income. Consequently, capital reserve decreased by Rs.3 million and deferred income of Rs. 3 million is recorded after taking Rs. * - ' million to
retaited earning as al 1 April 2016, Further, an amount of Rs. ' - ' million was credited 1o profit or loss during 3§ March 2017
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Ex Cise duty

Under the previous GAAP, revenue from sale of products was presented exclusive of exeise duty. Under Ind AS, revenue from sale of goods is presented
inclisive of excise duty. The excise duty paid is presented on the face of the statment of profit and loss as part of expenses. This change has resulted in an
increase in total revenue and total expenses for the year ended 31 March 2017 by Rs. 809 million. There is no impect on the total equity and profit

Employee benefits: Remeasurement of post employment benefit plans

Under Ind AS, remeasurements i.c. actuarial gains and losses on the net defined benefit liability are recognised in other comprehensive income instead of
statement of profit and loss. Under previous GAAP these were forming part of the statement of profit and loss for the year. As a result Profit for the year
ended March 31, 2017 is increased by Rs.4 million and is reclassified to other comprehensive income. There is no impact on the total equity as at 31 March
2017

Other comprehensive income

Under previous GAAP, there was no requirement to disclose any item of statement of profit and foss in other comprehensive income. However as per
requirement of Ind AS certain items of profit or loss are to be reclassified to other comprehensive income. Consequent to this, the Company has reclassified
remeasurement of defined benefit plans from the statement of profit and loss to other comprehensive income.
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